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RESULTS

On behalf of the board of directors (the “Board”) of Chung Tai
Printing Holdings Limited (the “Company”), | am pleased to report
the audited results of the Company and its subsidiaries (the “Group”)
for the year ended 31 March, 2009.

During the year under review, the Group recorded a turnover of
HK$691,495,009, representing a decrease of approximately 5.1%
as compared with last year’'s HK$728,563,145.

In the year 2008/09, there was a global economic turmoil. The US
subprime mortgage crisis destroyed the hundred-year stable basis of
the financial system. Its economy has been seriously hit, turning from
prosperity to adversity and affected among countries in the world.

Our Group was unavoidably hit by such an unprecedented turbulence.
Together with an exchange loss of HK$27.3 million on the Australian
dollars (“AUD") time deposit held by the Company, a loss of
HK$17,935,606 attributable to equity shareholders of the Group
was resulted. Loss per share was HK0.18 cents.

Chung Tai Printing Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2009
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Chairman’s Statement
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FUTURE PROSPECTS

Despite of the uncertainties ahead as the global financial crisis
unfolds, we believe that the operating environment for manufacturers
in the Pearl River Delta region has improved slightly in early 2009/10
as commodity prices are reduced as compared with last year’s level.
Moreover, the government of the People’s Republic of China (the
“PRC") has executed an array of policies to prevent the country from
recession and encourage domestic consumption.

Since July 2009, our Group has taken well-planned strategic move
into the music and entertainment businesses in order to reap
the future growing industry brought about by the PRC domestic
consumption. Concerning our printing businesses, even though the
coming 2009/10 will continue to be challenging, the Board and its
devoted team of staff will try their every best effort to achieve a
better performance in the coming years.

ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS

Last but not least, | would like to thank all of our shareholders,
customers, suppliers, bankers, business partners for their continuous
support during the year. | would also like to express my sincere
gratitude to the Board and all our dedicated staff for their invaluable
services of past year. Their dedicated attitude will contribute to our
greatest reward in the difficult environment ahead and facilitate our
prosperous development in future.

On behalf of the Board

DR. SUEK CHAI KIT, CHRISTOPHER
Chairman

Hong Kong, 20 July, 2009
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Management Discussion and Analysis
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REVIEW OF FINANCIAL RESULTS

During the year under review, the businesses of the Group have been
adversely affected by the downturn of worldwide economies caused
by the global financial tsunami. As a result, the Group recorded its
first year loss for this financial year since its listing in 1992.

The Group recorded a loss of HK$17.9 million for the financial
year ended 31 March 2009, compared with a profit of HK$39.0
million for the previous year. The loss was mainly attributable to
the exchange losses of HK$27.3 million on the Australian dollars
("AUD") time deposit held by the Company.

Turnover of the Group was slightly decreased by 5.1% to HK$691.5
million (1.4.2007 to 31.3.2008: HK$728.6 million), The gross profit
for the year has dropped a bit to HK$123.5 million from last year’s
HK$124.8 million.

The distribution costs were increased by approximately 7.7% to
HK$35.0 million (1.4.2007 to 31.3.2008: HK$32.5 million) due to the
increase in transportation and petroleum costs. The administrative
expenses were reduced by 4.1% to HK$60.6 million from HK$63.2
million for last year.

The significant change in financial performance was mainly due to
the following reasons:

e Finance costs of HK$8.3 million attributable to the effective
interest expenses on the convertible notes issued in November
2007.

e Loss of HK$1.5 million on redemption of the convertible notes
mentioned above.

e An amount of HK$5.7 million, being the value of the printing
materials and finished goods that became obsolete during the
year, were written-down.

e Exchange loss amounting to HK$27.3 million brought by the fall
in value of the AUD time deposit held by the Group as a result
of the current adverse financial and economic conditions.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
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REVIEW OF FINANCIAL RESULTS (Continued)

The Board wishes to emphasis that the intention of holding the time
deposit in AUD was to earn higher yield on funds held and the Group
has not engaged in any leveraged foreign exchange contracts and
does not have any exposure to equity or currency accumulators. The
said deposit is still held by the Group at the time of this report.

Despite of the aforesaid potential loss, the Group maintains sufficient
working capital to meet its operating needs and sufficient funds to
cater for future investment opportunities.

BUSINESS REVIEW

During the year under review, the Group continued to experience
severe challenges. The current economic turmoil exerted great
pressure on the Group's performance in terms of the fall in demands
in American market.

In the first half year of its financial year 2009, the Group continued
to face challenges of surging material costs, appreciation in the value
of Renminbi ("RMB") against Hong Kong dollars, and increases in
labour costs and other operating costs. Profit margin was further
slimmed down.

In response to the worldwide financial crisis and economic turmoil,
the government of the PRC introduced an array of policies in an
effort to stabilize the economic position of the manufacturers
in the Pearl River Delta region as a whole. However, the fall in
demand resulted from the severe global economic downturn and
the imminent recession overrode all positive effects brought by these
policies and the moderating material costs to the Group in the rest
of the year under review.

During the year ended 31 March 2009, distribution costs rose by
7.7% to HK$35.0 million (2008: HK$32.5 million). Such increase
was mainly due to the high fuel costs and increase in transportation
frequencies to meet customers’ orders during this difficult period.
Administrative expenses reduced by 4.1% to HK$60.6 million (2008:
HK$63.2 million) resulted from the cautious measures on cost
control implemented in the year. The significant increase in finance
costs to HK$8.6 million (2008: HK$4.1 million) during the year was
attributable to the effective interest expenses on the convertible
notes issued in November 2007.

To improve production and operation efficiencies, the Group had
made capital expenditures totalling HK$9.3 million (2008: HK$18.8
million), principally composed of plant and machinery, computer
equipments and construction in progress.

Chung Tai Printing Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2009
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PROSPECTS

In the year 2008/09, the global economy encountered significant
challenges. Most of the major economic powers fell into recession,
unemployment surged and credit dried up.

The G20 industrial nations have agreed to combat the worldwide
financial crisis and have launched stimulus packages aimed at
strengthening their economies. The PRC has announced a RMB4
trillion stimulus package to encourage domestic consumption and
prevent a deeper recession. These significant financial supports from
major governments, to a certain extent, can gradually improve the
customers’ confidence and speed up recovery of markets.

Acquisition of music and entertainment businesses

In order to grasp the above opportunities and to widen the revenue
base of the Group, the Group acquired Neway Entertainment
Group, a group of companies engaged in music and entertainment
businesses, from its major shareholders in June 2009. The Board
believes music and entertainment businesses is a future growing
area and it is optimistic about the future prospects and the business
potential of the artistes management, music production and/or
distribution of music albums. Neway Entertainment Group has
gained valuable experience in operating the music and entertainment
businesses and it has also started to gain market presence in
the music and entertainment industry. It is considered that the
acquisition will enable the Group to quickly establish a platform and
step into the music and entertainment industry.

Printing business

In the coming year, the Group will continue its cautious but
aggressive business and financial strategies to tackle the potential
adverse effects and weakened economies caused by the prolonged
financial crisis.

The Directors anticipate that in the aftermath of the financial
tsunami, the global economy will take time to heal. Demands in
Europe and North America will remain weak in the days ahead,
hence we cannot be overly optimistic about the outlook for the
export businesses. However, the PRC government is continuing to
pursue effective policies to expand domestic demand to reduce
its dependence on exports and to achieve sustained economic
growth. The Group is both optimistic and confident about the PRC
government’s efforts to pursue growth, and believes that therein lies
our boundless opportunities for continuous business development.
We expect that domestic demand as a proportion of our overall
business will grow from the current level of 28% to even higher
level.
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PROSPECTS (Continued)

Printing business (Continued)

Having faced such challenges as well as opportunities, the Group will
continuously strengthen its management team that has committed
themselves to rationalising and reengineering its workflow and
processes to reduce costs and increase efficiency.

Qingyuan Project

The Group will speed up the development project in Qingyuan and
expect phase | of the plant development will be completed by around
the beginning of year 2011. Estimated usable area of the phase | of
Qingyuan project is about twice of the existing plant areas of the
Group in Hengguan, Shenzhen. This enormous investment not only
signifies a new phase of the Group’s development, but also improves
its production capabilities. Coupled with the low-cost benefits in
Qingyuan, economies of scale, resources and technology sharing
amongst our factories in Shenzhen, it is believed that the Group is
capable of capturing any emerging opportunities and generating
impressive returns when the new plant operates.

With its strong financial resources and liquidity, the Group will
continue to explore good investment opportunities to enhance
Shareholders’ returns.

LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL POSITION

As at 31 March 2009, the Group had approximately HK$379.7
million bank balances and cash and short-term bank deposits (31
March 2008: HK$407.7 million), after deducting bank borrowings
of HK$1.1 million (31 March 2008: HK$6.0 million). The current
ratio stood at 11.1, reflecting ample cash flow and maintaining a
stable liquidity position over the year. The gearing ratio was 0.1%
(31 March 2008: 16.6%), which is calculated based on the Group’s
total borrowings of HK$1.1 million (31 March 2008: HK$129.0
million) and the shareholders’ fund of HK$754.5 million (31 March
2008: HK$779.1 million).

Chung Tai Printing Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2009
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LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL POSITION (Continued)

At 31 March 2009, the Group had working capital surplus of
HK$500.6 million (31 March 2008: HK$647.4 million), which
comprised primarily inventories of HK$72.0 million, trade and other
receivables (including amount due from a related company) of
HK$97.4 million, bank balances, cash and short-term bank deposits
of HK$380.8 million, less trade and other payables of HK$47.3
million, tax liabilities of HK$1.2 million and bank borrowings of
HK$1.1 million.

Having carefully evaluated the working capital requirement
and available funds of the Group, the Group exercised its early
redemption option in accordance with the terms and conditions
of the convertible notes issued in November 2007. In December
2008, the Group redeemed all convertible notes for an amount of
HK$132,720,000 and a loss on redemption of HK$1,451,000 was
recognised in the consolidated income statement directly.

Save for the AUD time deposit held by the Company, the Group’s
transactions are mainly denominated in Hong Kong dollars, Renminbi
and United States dollars and the foreign currency risk exposure is
not significant during the year under review. During the year, the
Group did not use any financial instruments for hedging purpose
and did not have any hedging instruments outstanding as at 31
March 2009.

The Group generally finances its operation with internally generated
cash flows and facilities provided by banks in Hong Kong. The Group
continues to maintain a high level of operating cash position, thus
reflecting the strength of its operating performance. Considering
the anticipated internally generated funds and available banking
facilities, the management believes that the Group has adequate
resources to meet its future capital expenditures and working capital
requirements. The management will continue to follow a prudent
policy in managing its cash balances and maintaining a strong and
healthy liquidity to ensure that the Group is well positioned to take
advantage of opportunities for the business growth.

DIVIDENDS

The Board of Directors did not recommend the payment of a
final dividend for the year ended 31 March 2009 (2008: HK0.091
cents).
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EMPLOYEES

As at 31 March, 2009, the total number of employees of the Group
was approximately 3,000.

The remuneration schemes are generally structured with reference
to market conditions and the qualifications of the employees. The
reward packages of the Group's staff are normally reviewed on an
annual basis based on the Group and staff performances. Aside
from salary payment, other staff benefits include contribution to
Retirement Benefit Scheme and medical insurance coverage provided
to eligible employees. Staff training is also provided as and when
required.

Chung Tai Printing Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2009
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The Board of the Company is pleased to present this Corporate
Governance Report in the Group’s annual report for the year ended
31 March, 2009.

The Company acknowledges the important role of its Board in
providing effective leadership and direction to Company business,
and ensuring transparency and accountability of Company
operations. The Board recognises that good corporate governance
practices are vital to maintain and promote shareholder value and
investor confidence and has adopted various measures to ensure a
high standard of corporate governance is maintained and has put
in place corporate governance practices to meet the code provisions
as set out in the Code on Corporate Governance Practices ("CG
Code"”) contained in Appendix 14 to the Rules Governing the Listing
of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“Stock
Exchange”) (“Listing Rules”) that are considered to be relevant
to the Group and appropriate to the conduct and growth of its
business. The Company is committed to enhancing its corporate
governance practices and to reviewing its corporate governance
practices from time to time to ensure that they align with the latest
developments.

Throughout the year under review, the Company has complied
with most of the code provisions set out in the CG Code, save for
certain deviations from the code provisions which are explained in
the relevant paragraphs in this Report.

THE BOARD
Responsibilities

The overall management of the Company’s business is vested in the
Board, which assumes the responsibility for leadership and control
of the Company and is collectively responsible for promoting the
success of the Company by directing and supervising its affairs. All
directors take decisions objectively in the interests of the Company
in the attainment of the objective of creating value to shareholders.
Every director carries out his duty in good faith and in compliance
with the standards of applicable laws and regulations, and acts in
the interests of the Company and its shareholders at all times.

Board Composition

The Board currently comprises eleven members, consisting of
four executive directors, four non-executive directors and three
independent non-executive directors, and has in its composition a
balance of expertise, skills and experience necessary for independent
decision-making.
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THE BOARD (Continued)

Board Composition (Continued)

The Board comprises the following directors as at the date of this
report:

Executive directors:

Mr. Suek Ka Lun, Ernie (Chief Executive Officer)
Ms. Ng Wai Chi

Mr. Suek Chai Hong

Mr. Lau Chin Hung

Non-executive directors.

Dr. Suek Chai Kit, Christopher (Chairman)

Mr. Suek Che Hin (member of Audit Committee and
Remuneration Committee)

Dr. Ng Wai Kwan

Mr. Chan Kwing Choi, Warren

Independent non-executive directors:

Mr. Wong Sun Fat (Chairman of Audit Committee and
member of Remuneration Committee)

Mr. Tse Tin Tai

Mr. Au Yan, Alfred (Chairman of Remuneration Committee and
member of Audit Committee)

Alternate Directors:
Dr. Ng Wai Yung, Angela (alternate to Mr. Suek Che Hin)
Mr. Lau Kam Cheong (alternate to Dr. Ng Wai Kwan)

The list of directors (by category) is disclosed in all corporate
communications issued by the Company pursuant to the Listing
Rules.

Mr. Suek Ka Lun, Ernie, Chief Executive Officer, is the son of Dr.
Suek Chai Kit, Christopher, Chairman. The detailed relationships
among members of the Board are disclosed under “Biographical
Details of Directors and Senior Executives” on pages 26 to 30.

During the year ended 31 March, 2009, the Board at all times met
the requirements of the Listing Rules relating to the appointment
of at least three independent non-executive directors with at least
one independent non-executive director possessing appropriate
professional qualifications, or accounting or related financial
management expertise.

Chung Tai Printing Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2009

EEE (#)
ExgdAm (&)

RAREBH EF2HUATESRTAE
(D

PITEF -
BEmRmi Rt (7T AERL)
RE /A
BEERL
BIRBRE

FHITEE -
BRI L (2/E)
BEHEE (FEZREEL
HNEEEHE)
REHBL

BRIA 5E 4

BIIHFHTER .

BNREE (FELZEETHELR
FTWZEEKR)
WRFRE

BT L (PN Z R 2L /E
REGZEEHR)

BEIEF
RERBL (BHETEHLE)
BlRE R E (BHLREHEL)

BELTRAZ AT EERE (L8
EHHED) HEEAATTIRZ A
DRI o

THAEHERBRTERTIFEBEGES L
ZF EFEEXEMZBERCESE26
BEFEZ [EZENRSPTHRARZ
AR | IR

RBE-TEAS=A=T—AL%F
- EFR-EMALTARZAE
BERD=EBIANTEE - MET
RO AETFRITEERARRES
LAENEH LN FERTR -



Hl— lHu—ul

[ —

Corporate Governance Report
TRERHRSE

THE BOARD (Continued)

Board Composition (Continued)

The Company has received written annual confirmation from each
independent non-executive director of his independence pursuant
to the requirements of the Listing Rules. The Company considers
all independent non-executive directors to be independent in
accordance with the independence guidelines set out in the Listing
Rules.

The non-executive directors bring a wide range of business
and financial expertise and experiences to the Board. Through
participation in Board meetings and serving on Board committees, all
non-executive directors make various contributions to the effective
direction of the Company.

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

The positions of the Chairman and Chief Executive Officer are
held by separate persons in order to preserve independence and a
balanced judgement of views. The Chairman of the Board, Dr. Suek
Chai Kit, Christopher, is responsible for the effective functioning of
the Board in accordance with good corporate governance practices
and is also responsible for chairing the meetings and managing the
operations of the Board and ensuring that all major and appropriate
issues are discussed by the Board in a timely and constructive
manner. The Chief Executive Officer, Mr. Suek Ka Lun, Ernie, is
responsible for running the Company’s businesses and developing
and implementing the Group’s strategic plans and business goals.
The Board considers that the respective responsibilities of the
Chairman and the Chief Executive Officer are clear and distinctive
and hence written terms thereof are not necessary.

Though the Chairman and the Chief Executive Officer are father and
son, they consider issues and make decisions independently.

Appointment and Re-election of Directors

Code provision A.4.1 of the CG Code stipulates that non-executive
directors should be appointed for a specific term, subject to
re-election.

Although the directors are not appointed for a specific term, all
directors of the Company are subject to retirement by rotation once
every three years and any new director appointed to fill a casual
vacancy shall submit himself/herself for re-election by shareholders
at the first general meeting after appointment pursuant to the
Company’s Bye-laws.
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THE BOARD (Continued)

Appointment and Re-election of Directors (Continued)

The procedures and process of appointment, re-election and removal
of directors are laid down in the Company’s Bye-laws. The Board as
a whole is responsible for reviewing the structure and composition
of the Board by reference to the business model of the Company,
developing and formulating the relevant procedures for nomination
and appointment of directors, monitoring the appointment and
succession planning of directors and assessing the independence of
independent non-executive directors.

The Company has not adopted written terms of the directors’
nomination procedures. Where vacancies on the Board exist, the
Board will carry out the selection process by making reference to
the skills, experience, professional knowledge, personal integrity and
time commitments of the proposed candidates, the Company’s needs
and other relevant statutory requirements and regulations.

Induction and Continuing Development for Directors

The directors are encouraged to attend external seminars and training
programmes at the Company’s expense to update themselves
with legal and regulatory developments, and the business and
market changes to facilitate the discharge of their responsibilities.
Continuing briefings and professional development to directors will
be arranged whenever necessary.

Chung Tai Printing Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2009
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THE BOARD (Continued)
Board and Board Committee Meetings

Board Practices and Conduct of Meetings

Notices of regular Board meetings are served to all directors at
least 14 days before the meetings. For other Board and committee
meetings, reasonable notice is generally given.

Board papers together with all appropriate, complete and reliable
information are sent to all directors at least 3 days before each Board
meeting or committee meeting to keep the directors apprised of
the latest developments and financial position of the Company and
to enable them to make informed decisions. The Board and each
director also have separate and independent access to the senior
management whenever necessary.

The Company Secretary is responsible to take and keep minutes
of all Board meetings and committee meetings. Draft minutes are
normally circulated to directors for comment within a reasonable
time after each meeting and the final version is open for directors’
inspection.

The Company’s Bye-laws contains provisions requiring directors
to abstain from voting and not to be counted in the quorum at
meetings for approving transactions in which such directors or any
of their associates have a material interest.

Directors’ Attendance Records

During the year ended 31 March, 2009, the Board met eight times,
two of which were regular Board meetings for reviewing and
approving the financial and operating performance of the Group.
The Company did not announce its quarterly results and hence did
not consider the holding of quarterly meetings as necessary.
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THE BOARD (Continued) Exe (&)

Board and Board Committee Meetings (Continued) EEgREEZEEEE (F)
Directors’ Attendance Records (Continued) EFLELER (E)

The individual attendance record of each director at the meetings of NTHEASEENEHEEZE _EENF=
the Board, Audit Committee and Remuneration Committee during A=+—HILFER Z2ESTE2 - F

the year ended 31 March, 2009 is set out below: “ZEZEEehTFMEZEeeZz 2 HED
8

Attendance/Number of meetings
held during the tenure of directorship

EEARHERY, SBRE

Audit Remuneration

Name of Directors Board Committee Committee
N E=g BERZEEE FMZESE
Executive Directors HITES
— Mr. Suek Ka Lun, Ernie —BRBLE 7/8 N/A N/A
(Chief Executive Officer) (7B #E%) TR @
- Ms. Ng Wai Chi —REZ/E 8/8 N/A N/A
T A
— Mr. Suek Chai Hong —BEELE 8/8 N/A N/A
TE A TE A
— Mr. Lau Chin Hung —REBEE 8/8 N/A N/A
T T
Non-Executive Directors FHTES
— Dr. Suek Chai Kit, Christopher (Chairman) —ERELT (2E) 7/8 N/A N/A
TNE A TNE A
— Mr. Suek Che Hin (member of — AL 2/8 2/2 2/2
Audit Committee and Remuneration Committee) (BRZEEE
REWZSSHKS)
- Dr. Ng Wai Kwan - REHEL 2/8 N/A N/A
T TE
— Mr. Chan Kwing Choi, Warren — Bk 7/8 N/A N/A
T T
Independent Non-Executive Directors BYFHTES
— Mr. Wong Sun Fat (Chairman of —EHBREE 2/8 212 212
Audit Committee and member of (BEZE2FE
Remuneration Committee) REWZEESHKE)
- Mr. Tse Tin Tai - WMAREEE 1/8 N/A N/A
T TiE B
— Mr. Au Yan, Alfred (member of — BT A 2/8 212 212
Audit Committee and Chairman of (BERZEEKAE
Remuneration Committee) REWZELTEE)

Chung Tai Printing Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2009
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THE BOARD (Continued)

Model Code for Securities Transactions

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions
by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) as set out in
Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules.

Specific enquiry has been made of all the directors and the directors
have confirmed that they have complied with the Model Code
throughout the year ended 31 March, 2009.

The Company has also established written guidelines on no less
exacting terms than the Model Code (the "Employees Written
Guidelines”) for securities transactions by employees who are likely
to be in possession of unpublished price-sensitive information of
the Company.

No incident of non-compliance of the Employees Written Guidelines
by the employees was noted by the Company.

DELEGATION

The Company has not formalized and adopted written terms on the
division of functions reserved to the Board and delegated to the
management. In practice, the Board takes responsibility for decision
making in all major matters of the Company including: the approval
and monitoring of all policy matters, the setting of objectives
and overall strategies, internal controls and risk management
systems, material transactions (in particular those may involve
conflict of interests), appointment of directors and other significant
financial and operational matters. The day-to-day management,
administration and operation of the Company are delegated to
the senior executives. The delegated functions and work tasks are
periodically reviewed. Approval has to be obtained from the Board
prior to any significant transactions entered into by these senior
executives and the Board has the full support of them to discharge
their responsibilities.

All directors have full and timely access to all relevant information
as well as the advice and services of the Company Secretary, with
a view to ensuring that Board procedures and all applicable rules
and regulations are followed. Each director is normally able to seek
independent professional advice in appropriate circumstances at the
Company’s expense, upon making request to the Board.

The Board has established two committees, namely, the Remuneration
Committee and Audit Committee, for overseeing particular aspects
of the Company’s affairs. All Board committees of the Company
are established with defined written terms of reference which are
posted on the Company’s website and are available to shareholders
upon request.
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DELEGATION (Continued)

Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee comprises three members, namely
Messrs. Au Yan, Alfred, Wong Sun Fat and Suek Che Hin, the
majority of them are independent non-executive directors.

The primary objectives of the Remuneration Committee include
making recommendations on and approving the remuneration policy
and structure and remuneration packages of the executive directors
and the senior management. The Remuneration Committee is also
responsible for establishing transparent procedures for developing
such remuneration policy and structure to ensure that no director
or any of his/her associates will participate in deciding his/her own
remuneration, which remuneration will be determined by reference
to the performance of the individual and the Company as well as
market practice and conditions. The Remuneration Committee shall
consult the Chairman and/or the Chief Executive Officer about their
proposals relating to the remuneration of the executive directors
and have access to professional advice at the Company’s expense,
if necessary.

ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT

Directors’ Responsibilities in respect of Financial
Statements

The directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing the
financial statements of the Company for the year ended 31 March,
2009.

The Board is responsible for presenting a balanced, clear and
understandable assessment of annual and interim reports,
price-sensitive announcements and other disclosures required under
the Listing Rules and other regulatory requirements.

The management provides such explanation and information to the
Board so as to enable the Board to make an informed assessment
of the financial information and position of the Company put to the
Board for approval.

Chung Tai Printing Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2009

BAONER (H)

FMzES
FMEEGm=RREAK - D3R
Mok EMBELEREEFERE A
IR E RBIFFNITES -

FHEEerERRAREER RILE
HITEENSRITHRAB ZHFMBER
BELFHIRE - FHEZESREEMN
HBEPE 212 BIR] 7% 5 5 B BOR e 4
B BRESIETABRBEALIASZ
HEFARGZHM  RE2HFHNELE
BRI R I N AR B Z A AR TISER
EHREE - HHZESSRATES
ZHFMNRBEAERE R RITRER
BR UAREHFTERSKEXER
ERBRARRAT

LES:E:
EERVBRRAREZERE

EEAREAAREARABE_ZEE
NF=A=+t—"BIEFEZHMBHRRHN
BIE -

SExe A aERPH®mE  WER
REFRE  AREAM EHHRAEEM
EEREBRZBEBRERELTS 8
i K IR IR R 2 AP 2 BAE o

EEECREZSREMFEHEENRE
B FEEFERUEZERDERZE
SN HEEAR R 2 B RS E R M B B AR
DL e



Il e

L =

Corporate Governance Report

ERERHRE

ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT (Continued)

Internal Controls

The Board is responsible for maintaining an adequate internal control
system to safeguard shareholder investments and Company assets.
The internal control system of the Group aims to facilitate effective
and efficient operations, to ensure reliability of financial reporting
and compliance with applicable laws and regulations, to identify and
manage potential risks and to safeguard assets of the Group. The
senior management shall review and evaluate the control process
and monitor any risk factors on a regular basis and report to the
Audit Committee on any findings and measures to address the
variances and identified risks.

The Board has conducted a review of the effectiveness of the internal
control system of the Group for the year ended 31 March, 2009.
Such review covered the financial, operational, compliance and risk
management aspects of the Group. The Board has also considered
the adequacy of resources, qualifications and experience of staff
of the Company’s accounting and financial reporting function, and
their training programmes and budget.

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee comprises three non-executive directors,
Messrs. Wong Sun Fat, Au Yan, Alfred and Suek Che Hin, the
majority of them are independent non-executive directors (including
one independent non-executive director who possesses the
appropriate professional qualifications or accounting or related
financial management expertise). None of the members of the Audit
Committee is a former partner of the Company’s existing external
auditors.

The main duties of the Audit Committee include the following:

e To review the financial statements and reports and consider
any significant or unusual items raised by the Company’s staff
responsible for the accounting and financial reporting function
and external auditors before submission to the Board.

e To review the adequacy and effectiveness of the Company’s
financial reporting system, internal control system and risk
management system and associated procedures.

e To review the relationship with the external auditors by
reference to the work performed by the auditors, their fees and
terms of engagement, and make recommendation to the Board
on the appointment, re-appointment and removal of external
auditors.
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ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT (Continued)

Audit Committee (Continued)

During the year under review, the Audit Committee met twice and
reviewed the Group’s annual results and annual report for the year
ended 31 March, 2008 and interim results for the six months ended
30 September, 2008. The Audit Committee has also reviewed with
the management the Group’s accounting policies and discussed
auditing, internal controls and financial reporting matters of the
Group and reported to the Board on material issues, if any, and
made recommendations to the Board. It has also reviewed the work
performed and fees charged by the external auditors and made
recommendation to the Board on the re-appointment of external
auditors.

The Company’s annual results for the year ended 31 March, 2009
has also been reviewed by the Audit Committee. There is no material
uncertainties relating to events or conditions that may cast significant
doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern.

There is no disagreement between the Board and the Audit
Committee regarding the selection and appointment of external
auditors.

External Auditors and Auditors’ Remuneration

The statement of the external auditors of the Company about their
reporting responsibilities on the financial statements is set out in the
“Independent Auditor’s Report” on pages 39 to 40.

During the year ended 31 March, 2009, the remuneration paid to
the external auditors of the Company in respect of audit services
and non-audit services amounted to HK$ 1,140,000 and HK$130,000
respectively.

Chung Tai Printing Holdings Limited
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COMMUNICATIONS WITH SHAREHOLDERS AND
INVESTORS

The Company believes that effective communication with
shareholders is essential for enhancing investor relations and
investors’ understanding of the Group’s business performance and
strategies. The Group also recognises the importance of transparency
and timely disclosure of corporate information which enables
shareholders and investors to make the best investment decision.

The Company continues to enhance communications and
relationships with its investors. Designated senior executives maintain
regular dialogue with institutional investors and analysts to keep
them abreast of the Company’s developments. Investors may write
directly to the Company at the principal place of business in Hong
Kong for any inquiries. Enquiries from investors are dealt with in an
informative and timely manner.

The general meetings of the Company provide a forum for
communication between the Board and the shareholders. The
Chairman of the Board as well as chairmen of the Remuneration
Committee and Audit Committee or, in their absence, other members
of the respective committees, normally attend the annual general
meeting and other relevant shareholders’ meetings to answer
questions at the shareholders’ meetings.

SHAREHOLDER RIGHTS

To safeguard the shareholders’ interests and rights, separate
resolutions are proposed at shareholders’ meetings on each
substantial issue, including the election of individual directors.

All resolutions put forward at a shareholders’ meeting will be taken
by poll pursuant to the Listing Rules and poll results will be posted
on the websites of the Company and of the Stock Exchange after
the shareholders’ meeting. The detailed procedures for conducting a
poll are always explained at the commencement of the meetings.
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. SUEK Ka Lun, Ernie, aged 30, was appointed as an executive
director of the Company in July 2004 and became the Chief
Executive Officer of the Company during the year. He is also a
director of Chung Tai Printing (China) Company Limited, Chung
Tai Investment and Development Limited, #EAENRI (Biz) BREA
7], Citicorp Development Limited, General Star Industrial Limited,
The Greatime Printing (Shenzhen) Company Limited and = AENf|
(&) BMRAF]. Mr. Suek obtained a master degree in Marketing
from the Chinese University of Hong Kong in 2003. He has 2 years
of experience in investment banking and subsequently moved on to
commercial sector and has been a director of a private company for
two years. He is responsible for monitoring the Group’s business and
implementing the Group’s strategic plan and business goals.

Mr. Suek is the son of Dr. Suek Chai Kit, Christopher, the Chairman
and non-executive director of the Company, and Dr. Ng Wai Yung,
Angela, senior executive of the Company and alternate director to
Mr. Suek Che Hin, non-executive director of the Company. He is
the grandson of Mr. Suek Che Hin, non-executive director of the
Company. Mr. Suek is the nephew of Mr. Suek Chai Hong and Ms.
Ng Wai Chi, both of whom are executive directors of the Company.
He is also the nephew of Dr. Ng Wai Kwan, non-executive director
of the Company.

Ms. NG Wai Chi, aged 49, joined the Group in 1979. She was
appointed as the Company’s executive director in 1992 and has
over 30 years of experience in label and silkscreen printing. She is
responsible for the procurement of the Group. She is also a director
of Chung Tai Printing (B.V.l.) Limited, Chung Tai Printing (China)
Company Limited, Chung Tai Printing Company Limited, Delight
Source Limited, FERENR (Fi&) BRAR - # AR (F&) AR
A7), Brilliant Wise International Limited and Gain Capital International
Limited.

Ms. Ng is the sister of Dr. Ng Wai Kwan, non-executive director
of the Company, and Dr. Ng Wai Yung, Angela, senior executive
of the Company and alternate director to Mr. Suek Che Hin, non-
executive director of the Company; sister-in-law of Dr. Suek Chai
Kit, Christopher, the Chairman and non-executive director of the
Company; and auntie of Mr. Suek Ka Lun, Ernie, executive director
and chief executive officer of the Company.

Chung Tai Printing Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2009
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS (Continued)

Mr. SUEK Chai Hong, aged 47, obtained a bachelor degree of
Business Administration in Finance from York University, Canada
and was appointed as the Company’s executive director in 1992.
Mr. Suek has more than 20 years of experience in marketing and
is responsible for overseeing offset business of the Group. He
is also a director of Chung Tai Printing (China) Limited, Delight
Source Limited, The Greatime Offset Printing Company Limited,
The Greatime Printing (Shenzhen) Company Limited, #EAXEIRI (5
iz) BRARE - FRERE (B&) BRZAT, Chung Tai Investment and
Development Limited, Citicorp Development Limited and General
Star Industrial Limited.

Mr. Suek is the brother of Dr. Suek Chai Kit, Christopher, the
Chairman and non-executive director of the Company; and brother-
in-law of Dr. Ng Wai Yung, Angela, alternate director to Mr. Suek
Che Hin, non-executive director of the Company. He is also the
son of Mr. Suek Che Hin, non-executive director of the Company;
and uncle of Mr. Suek Ka Lun, Ernie, executive director and chief
executive officer of the Company.

Mr. LAU Chin Hung, aged 54, was appointed as the Company’s
executive director on 15 March, 2007. He was awarded a Higher
Diploma (with Distinction) in Design by the Hong Kong Polytechnic
(presently the Hong Kong Polytechnic University) in 1976. He is
responsible for the overall planning and operations of the Company
and the Group. Mr. Lau had been a section head in the design
department of a listed electronics company in Hong Kong for 12
years. Before he joined the Company and its group, Mr. Lau was an
assistant to the Managing Director of one of the leading printing
public listed companies in Hong Kong during 2004-2006. Mr. Lau
is also a director of Chung Tai Printing (B.V.1.) Limited, Brilliant Wise
International Limited, Gain Capital International Limited, Citicorp
Development Limited and General Star Industrial Limited.

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Dr. SUEK Chai Kit, Christopher, aged 57, was appointed as an
executive director of the Company since its incorporation and was
re-designated as a non-executive director of the Company on 29
November, 2007. He is the Chairman and founder of the Group.
He is also a director of Chung Tai Printing (B.V.l.) Limited, CNA
Company Limited and Profit Link Investment Limited, The Greatime
Printing (Shenzhen) Company Limited, Brilliant Wise International
Limited and Gain Capital International Limited. Dr. Suek has obtained
a doctor of Business Administration degree from University of South
Australia and a master degree in Business Administration from
Deakin University, Australia. Dr. Suek has over 30 years of experience
in the printing industry.
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NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS (Continued)

Dr. Suek is the husband of Dr. Ng Wai Yung, Angela, senior
executive of the Company and alternate director to Mr. Suek Che
Hin, non-executive director of the Company; and brother-in-law of
Ms. Ng Wai Chi, executive director of the Company, and Dr. Ng
Wai Kwan, non-executive director of the Company. He is also the
son of Mr. Suek Che Hin, non-executive director of the Company;
the father of Mr. Suek Ka Lun, Ernie, executive director and chief
executive officer of the Company; and the elder brother of Mr. Suek
Chai Hong, executive director of the Company.

Dr. NG Wai Kwan, aged 59, was appointed as the Company’s non-
executive director on 15 March, 2007. Dr. Ng holds an engineering
doctorate degree from the University of Warwick in U.K. Dr. Ng
has over 20 years’ experience in procurement, logistic planning and
leadership development.

Dr. Ng is the elder brother of Ms. Ng Wai Chi, executive director
of the Company, and Dr. Ng Wai Yung, Angela, alternate director
to Mr. Suek Che Hin, non-executive director of the Company; and
brother-in-law of Dr. Suek Chai Kit, Christopher, non-executive
director and Chairman of the Company. He is also the uncle of Mr.
Suek Ka Lun, Ernie, executive director and chief executive officer of
the Company.

Mr. SUEK Che Hin, aged 87, was appointed as a non-executive
director in 1994. Mr. Suek is a member of both the audit and
remuneration committees of the Company. He has over 50 years’
experience in the printing industry.

Mr. Suek is the father of Dr. Suek Chai Kit, Christopher, non-
executive director and Chairman of the Company, and Mr. Suek Chai
Hong, executive director of the Company. He is also the grandfather
of Mr. Suek Ka Lun, Ernie, executive director and chief executive
officer of the Company; and father-in-law of Dr. Ng Wai Yung,
Angela, the senior executive of the Company and his alternate.

Mr. CHAN Kwing Choi Warren, aged 57, was appointed as an
independent non-executive director in 2002 and re-designated as a
non-executive director of the Company on 29 November, 2007. Mr.
Chan is a fellow member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants and has over 26 years of experience in finance
and management in several multinational corporations.

Chung Tai Printing Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2009
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. WONG Sun Fat, aged 53, was appointed as an independent
non-executive director of the Company in 1994. He is a member
of the remuneration committee and the Chairman of the audit
committee of the Company. Mr. Wong holds a Bachelor of Arts
degree from the University of Hong Kong and has over 20 years’
experience in telecommunication products.

Mr. TSE Tin Tai, aged 45, was appointed as an independent non-
executive director of the Company in 2006. He holds a Bachelor
of Business Administration degree from York University, Canada
and has over 20 years’ experience in sales and marketing field in
information technology related companies.

Mr. AU Yan, Alfred, aged 58, was appointed as an independent
non-executive director of the Company and a member of the audit
committee and the Chairman of the remuneration committee of
the Company in November 2007. He is a fellow member of the
Chartered Association of Certified Accountants and the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants and an associate member of
the Institute of Chartered Secretaries and the Institute of Chartered
Accountants in England and Wales. He has been awarded HKICPA
Webtrust Accreditation in 2000. Mr. Au has more than 36 years of
experience in accounting and held senior accounting positions in a
number of large companies in Hong Kong. Mr. Au is currently the
principal of Alfred Au Yan & Co., a Certified Public Accountants
firm in Hong Kong.

ALTERNATE DIRECTORS

Dr. NG Wai Yung, Angela, aged 57, was appointed as alternate
director to Mr. Suek Che Hin, non-executive director of the
Company, on 9 July, 2008. She is a director of Chung Tai Printing
Company Limited and Chung Tai Printing (China) Company Limited
and also a senior executive of the Company. Dr. Ng joined the
Group in 1994 and has over 30 years’ experience in label and screen
process printing business. She holds a master degree in Business
Administration from Macquarie University, Australia and a Honorary
doctor of philosophy degree in Business Management from Burkes
University, the British West Indies, United Kingdom.

Dr. Ng is the spouse of Dr. Suek Chai Kit, Christopher, non-executive
director and Chairman of the Company; mother of Mr. Suek Ka Lun,
Ernie, executive director and chief executive officer of the Company;
sister of Ms. Ng Wai Chi, executive director of the Company, and Dr.
Ng Wai Kwan, non-executive director of the Company; daughter-in-
law of Mr. Suek Che Hin, non-executive director of the Company;
and sister-in-law of Mr. Suek Chai Hong, executive director of the
Company.
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ALTERNATE DIRECTORS (Continued)

Mr. LAU Kam Cheong, aged 46, was appointed as alternate director
to Dr. Ng Wai Kwan, non-executive director of the Company, on 9
July, 2008. He is a manager of Delight Source Limited and the
human resources manager of Chung Tai Printing (China) Company
Limited. Mr. Lau joined the Group in 2001. He holds a master degree
in Business Administration and a master degree in Professional
Accounting from the Open University of Hong Kong. He is a member
of the Chartered Institute of Marketing in United Kingdom and has
over 15 years of experience in management, sales and marketing.

SENIOR EXECUTIVES

Ms. LAW Suk Ting, Amen is the customer service manager of the
Group’s label and screen process business. She has over 20 years’
experience in label and screen process printing and joined the Group
in 1985. She has obtained a diploma of management studies from
Hong Kong Management Association in 2000.

Mr. TANG Kam Shing, Roland is the qualified accountant and
company secretary of the Company and joined the Group in January,
2008. He graduated with a bachelor (honour) degree in Accountancy
and a master degree in Corporate Governance from the Hong Kong
Polytechnic University. Mr. Tang is an associate member of The Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and fellow member of
The Association of International Accountants. He is also an associate
member of The Hong Kong Institute of Chartered Secretaries and
The Institute of Chartered Secretaries and Administrators. Mr. Tang
has over 15 years of experience in finance, accounting, auditing
and taxation. Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Tang had been the
senior finance executive of several listed group of companies and
multinational companies in Hong Kong.

Ms. WONG Wai Man, Kriste is the customer service manager of the
Group’s offset printing business. She has over 18 years' experience
in offset printing and joined the Group in 1989.

Chung Tai Printing Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2009
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The directors present their annual report and the audited consolidated
financial statements for the year ended 31 March, 2009.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is an investment holding company. The principal
activities and other details of the subsidiaries and associate are set
out in notes 31 and 16 respectively to the consolidated financial
statements.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 March, 2009 are set
out in the consolidated income statement on page 41.

An interim dividend of HKO0.03 cents per share amounting to
HK$3,058,064 was paid to the shareholders during the year.

The directors did not recommend the payment of a final dividend
for the year ended 31 March, 2009.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

The Group acquired property, plant and equipment during the year
at an aggregate cost of approximately HK$9 million in order to
increase its production capacity. Details of this and other movements
during the year in the property, plant and equipment of the Group
are set out in note 14 to the consolidated financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

The share capital of the Company is set out in note 25 to the
consolidated financial statements.

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, sold or
redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities during the year.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 31 March, 2009, the reserves of the Company available for
distribution to shareholders were approximately HK$383,488,000,
being the contributed surplus of approximately HK$19,782,000 and
the retained profits of approximately HK$363,706,000.
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FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the
Group for the past five financial years is set out on page 100.

DIRECTORS

The directors of the Company during the year and up to the date
of this report were:

Executive directors:

Mr. Suek Ka Lun, Ernie (Chief Executive Officer)
Ms. Ng Wai Chi

Mr. Suek Chai Hong

Mr. Lau Chin Hung

Non-executive directors:

Dr. Suek Chai Kit,
Christopher
Mr. Suek Che Hin

(Chairman)

(Dr. Ng Wai Yung, Angela was appointed
as his alternate effective on 9 July, 2008)

(Mr. Lau Kam Cheong was appointed as his
alternate effective on 9 July, 2008)

Dr. Ng Wai Kwan

Mr. Chan Kwing Choi,
Warren

Independent non-executive directors:

Mr. Wong Sun Fat
Mr. Tse Tin Tai
Mr. Au Yan, Alfred

In accordance with Bye-law 87.(1) of the Company’s Bye-laws,
Messrs. Ng Wai Chi, Suek Chai Hong, Suek Chai Kit, Christopher and
Ng Wai Kwan will retire at the forthcoming annual general meeting
("AGM") of the Company. Messrs. Suek Chai Hong and Ng Wai
Kwan, being eligible, will offer themselves for re-election at the AGM
pursuant to Bye-law 87.(2). Messrs. Ng Wai Chi and Suek Chai Kit,
Christopher will not seek for re-election thereat.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

No director being proposed for re-election at the forthcoming annual
general meeting has a service contract which is not determinable by
the Group within one year without payment of compensation (other
than statutory compensation).

Chung Tai Printing Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2009
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SHARES AND
UNDERLYING SHARES

At 31 March, 2009, the interests of the directors and their associates
in the shares and underlying shares of the Company and its
associated corporations, as recorded in the register maintained
by the Company pursuant to Section 352 of the Securities and
Futures Ordinance, or as otherwise notified to the Company and
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited pursuant to the Model
Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers, were
as follows:

(i) Long positions of ordinary shares of HK$0.005
each of the Company

Name of director

EEns

Capacity
47

EE 2R RERKG #ES

R_EZNF=ZA=+—H EBFKLH
EZHBEATRARRLREMAEEIE Y
D RABRERGF - A AR RIREFE
S RHEEPIE3I526FE 2 B Mer
ik HIRE ETMEBEITAERENTES
RS ZIEEFRIBME RN T RE B
AERGBRARZERIT ¢

(i) X2TEREEO0.0058 TEE
BRZEFE

Percentage
of the issued
share capital

of the Company
EARAR B BT
[ NER

Number of
ordinary
shares held

BREBERHA

Dr. Ng Wai Yung,

Dr. Suek Chai Kit, Christopher Beneficial owner

BEGE L ExEAA
Other interests (note 1)
Hi s (A1F1)
Ms. Ng Wai Chi Beneficial owner
B2 EnEAA
Mr. Ng Wai Kwan Beneficial owner
REBLE EnEAA
Mr. Suek Che Hin Held by controlled corporation (note 2)
BEFTE MXETERRR (Ai72)
Mr. Suek Ka Lun, Ernie Other interests (note 1)
BEBTE Hh i (f1at1)

Interests of spouse (note 3)
Angela (Alternate director to BB (#75#3)
l\/Ir. Suek Che Hin)
ERNEL
(Emﬁ%f‘ﬁiZ**Eﬁ%)

Notes:

1.

These shares are beneficially owned by CNA Company Limited (“CNA")
which in turn is beneficially owned by the CNA Trust, a discretionary trust
whose objects include the children of Dr. Suek Chai Kit, Christopher. Mr.
Suek Ka Lun, Ernie is the son of Dr. Suek Chai Kit, Christopher.

These shares are beneficially owned by Goodhope Assets Limited, in which
Mr. Suek Che Hin has a beneficial interest.

Dr. Ng Wai Yung, Angela is the spouse of Dr. Suek Chai Kit, Christopher.

274,000,000

3,713,200,000

3,987,200,000 39.11%
203,400,000 1.99%
800,000 0.01%
382,400,000 3.75%
3,713,200,000 36.43%
3,987,200,000 39.11%

[ES

1. % % B 5 J5 ACNA Company Limited
(TCNAD) BmlEA @ M A FAIRCNAGR
(*IEF‘/\ BEEEES T TLZ2ER
) BEEAR  BRBIERBEAE LY
Fo

2. &R xfnTbEEGoodhope Assets L|m|ted B

A SEALREAZ AR ZEmE
e

3. REABLIARBAEMELZES-
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SHARES AND EECRORIEER D ER (&)
UNDERLYING SHARES (Continued)

(ii) Long positions of shares in associated corporations (ii) B EERD 2 HE

At 31 March, 2009, CNA and Ms. Ng Wai Chi beneficially _?%ﬂﬁ )EJ +—H ' CNA
owned deferred non-voting shares in the following subsidiaries NREE/NEESEALRNNT N
of the Company: Ny N 72?&&m% RIER

Number and par value of
Name of subsidiary Name of owner deferred non-voting shares
MEARER BEAEW EBRERELER A REE
Chung Tai Management Limited CNA 2 shares of HK$1 each
PAEEBRAT 20 FREEVET
Chung Tai Printing (China) Company Limited CNA 100 shares of HK$100 each
RRENR () ARAF 1000% - BARE{E100/8 7T
Chung Tai Printing Company Limited CNA 3,000 shares of HK$100 each
R ENRIA R &) 3,000/% - FAXEE100/87T
Profit Link Investment Limited CNA 2 shares of HK$1 each
FAREEEREERA 2f% - BRREE1AT
The Greatime Offset Printing Company, Limited Ng Wai Chi 500 shares of HK$100 each
FER M ENRI AR A 7 REZ 500/% - ARE{E100/% 7T
CNA 9,500 shares of HK$100 each

9,500/% * FRXE{E100/87T

The rights and restrictions of such deferred non-voting shares are ZEBRERELERNS 2R R
set out in note 31 to the consolidated financial statements. PR I E AR A I SRR T 5E31 -
Other than as disclosed above, none of the directors nor their bR EXFIEEEIN RZEZNF=H
associates had any interests or short positions in any shares =+—H BMESEEIREFIHMEAL
and underlying shares of the Company or any of its associated R Rl sk E A AR E B 2 (R AR5

corporations as at 31 March, 2009. KRR D R B R EmIAR o

Chung Tai Printing Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2009
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ARRANGEMENTS TO PURCHASE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

At no time during the year was the Company, or any of its
subsidiaries, a party to any arrangements to enable the directors
of the Company to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition
of shares in, or debentures of, the Company or any other body
corporate.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

Other than as disclosed in note 29 to the consolidated financial
statements, no contracts of significance to which the Company, or
any of its subsidiaries, was a party and in which a director of the
Company had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly,
subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during the year.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The Company has received, from each of the independent
non-executive directors, an annual confirmation of his independence
pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company considers
all of the independent non-executive directors are independent.

CONNECTED TRANSACTION

There were no transactions which needed to be disclosed as
connected transactions in accordance with the requirements of the
Listing Rules.

BEROIES 2L H

REREMER - AR A SHEAATHE
NEERT R RYE - BEARRE
SR REBARRQR ST EMEABRE
ZB DS E M o

EECENER

B ir & BT 15 MR MY SE29PT R BE & O

RN A S E AT B B A R B AT LR AR
RAFAEAMBEBERMARREER
HOTERAERAREAEGLERA
# o

BYFHTES
ARFEEREBULIENTEERIE L
R LIEERE S-S % 8- 0k hvi: v
M2 REA - AARRALEE
S IFITE R A BT -
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1914 35 5 781 4 B T A B 2 A DA B
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

At 31 March, 2009, the interests or short positions of the substantial
shareholders (other than the interests disclosed above in respect
of certain directors who are also substantial shareholders of the
Company) in the shares and underlying shares of the Company as
recorded in the register of substantial shareholders maintained by
the Company pursuant to Section 336 of the Securities and Futures
Ordinance, or as otherwise notified to the Company and The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited pursuant to Divisions 2 and 3 of Part
XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance were as follows:

Long Positions

Name of shareholder

Capacity
REREHE 14

FERRE
RZEBETZAE=A=+—8 ' FTERE
AR BIRREHF M S 60 33615
GEZEERRLZMA AT KIRE
BEHERHE ST EXVERFE 2R3N ERE B
MEARRRBEBRERIIERRARZ
RARRD MABERDEZSOAR (£
N BEETIARRREEREZE
EZRERBRIN) I

"R

Percentage of
the issued
share capital

Newcorp Ltd.
FBRXESEERA

Trustee

ZEEA

Trustcorp Limited

Beneficial owner

BB A

CNA Company Limited

EMOLUMENT POLICY

The emolument policy of the general staff of the Group is set
up by the management of the Group on the basis of their merit,
qualifications and competence.

The emoluments of the directors and senior management of the
Company are decided by the Remuneration Committee, having
regard to the Company’s operating results, individual performance
and comparable market statistics.

Chung Tai Printing Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2009

Held by controlled corporations

Number of of the Company
shares held HARQATE BT
RO E BAET DL
4,095,600,000 40.18%
4,095,600,000 40.18%
3,713,200,000 36.43%

N R
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Throughout the year ended 31 March, 2009, the Company applied
the principles of and complied with all the code provisions of, the
Code on Corporate Governance Practices (the “Code”) contained in
Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules save for certain deviations. Details
of the corporate governance practices are set out in the section
headed “Corporate Governance Report” on pages 15 to 25.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
Bye-laws or the laws of Bermuda, which would oblige the Company
to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to existing shareholders.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

The Company has maintained a sufficient public float throughout
the year ended 31 March, 2009.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The Group's largest supplier accounted for 19% of total purchases
while the Group'’s five largest suppliers accounted for 38% of total
purchases during the year.

Aggregate sales attributable to the Group’s five largest customers
were less than 30% of total turnover.

At no time during the year did a director, an associate of a director
or a shareholder of the Company (which to the knowledge of the
directors owns more than 5% of the Company’s share capital) have
a beneficial interest in any of the Group’s five largest suppliers
during the year.

POST BALANCE SHEET EVENTS

Details of significant events occurring after the balance sheet date
are set out in note 32 to the consolidated financial statements.

EER
RBZE_ZZENF=A=+—HILFE
2F  BRETRMEI  ARREETLE
MR A B TP R E R E AR T R
(IsPRI)) 2 BESTRMGEX - BRADRE
BARHRZABRHNFISAERE28Z
[EERERRSE] —H -

BrREE

KRB Z XA AR R B R E A B R
MBS RIBIE 2R3 AREARRBIA
B PIRIRBRREZF RN -

EHALRERE

ARARBE-BEAF=A=+—A
EE-EER RN ARHRE -

FTEFFRHER

AEEZAHER 2 BIERBARGR
RERE19%  MAKBERARHERZ
BEERBRBAUNEAFEZARERE
38% -

AEBRAAEFZEHREERGRE
HEEEETE30% °

RERTEERE BMEARRESE &
EVHMEALTHINE (RESHNEE
BERRNBIIRAS%IA F) RAREE TR R
AEEEEE E gD °
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AUDITOR

A resolution will be submitted to the forthcoming annual general
meeting to re-appoint Messrs. Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu as auditor
of the Company.

On behalf of the Board

DR. SUEK CHAI KIT, CHRISTOPHER
Chairman

Hong Kong, 20 July, 2009

Chung Tai Printing Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2009
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Independent Auditor’s Report
B AR S

Deloitte.

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
CHUNG TAI PRINTING HOLDINGS LIMITED
(incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Chung
Tai Printing Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(collectively referred to as the “Group”) set out on pages 41 to 99,
which comprise the consolidated balance sheet as at 31 March,
2009, and the consolidated income statement, the consolidated
statement of changes in equity and the consolidated cash flow
statement for the year then ended, and a summary of significant
accounting policies and other explanatory notes.

Directors’ responsibility for the consolidated financial
statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
and the true and fair presentation of these consolidated financial
statements in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance. This responsibility includes designing,
implementing and maintaining internal control relevant to the
preparation and the true and fair presentation of the consolidated
financial statements that are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error; selecting and applying appropriate
accounting policies; and making accounting estimates that are
reasonable in the circumstances.

Auditor’s responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated
financial statements based on our audit and to report our opinion
solely to you, as a body, in accordance with section 90 of the
Bermuda Companies Act, and for no other purpose. We do not
assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person
for the contents of this report. We conducted our audit in accordance
with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Those standards require
that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the
audit to obtain reasonable assurance as to whether the consolidated
financial statements are free from material misstatement.

2
PREFEERRAFRR
(REFRZEAMA L BERAA)
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Independent Auditor’s Report
B AR

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence
about the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor
considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and
true and fair presentation of the consolidated financial statements
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also
includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by
the directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the

consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the state of affairs of the Group as at 31 March, 2009
and of the Group’s loss and cash flows for the year then ended
in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards and
have been properly prepared in accordance with the disclosure

requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong 20 July, 2009

Chung Tai Printing Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2009
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Consolidated Income Statement

e WE R

For the year ended 31 March, 2009
BZ_FEENFZH=1—HIFE

Revenue g 6 691,495,009 728,563,145
Cost of sales fHE KA (567,992,902) (603,784,375)
Gross profit EF 123,502,107 124,778,770
Interest income FEUW A 6,734,535 9,592,481
Other income E A 382,494 14,079,588
Loss on redemption of convertible &I A[ AR ZE 2
notes E5i8 (1,451,449) -
Distribution costs ST IDWiN (34,993,544) (32,492,534)
Administrative expenses ITEFAS (60,647,862) (63,231,179)
Other expenses and losses B kEE (40,050,870) (7,450,495)
Finance costs B & Ak AN 7 (8,586,334) (4,092,606)
Share of loss of an associate FE (G — A B & A A

B8 (904,686) -
(Loss) profit before taxation BrEiAT (E518) m Al (16,015,609) 41,184,025
Taxation 18 10 (1,919,997) (2,164,283)
(Loss) profit for the year REFEZ (BE) m 11 (17,935,606) 39,019,742
Dividends recognised as distributions & NHER A0 K <
during the year A& B 12 12,361,828 18,607,528
(Loss) earnings per share Bk (BE) &8F
Basic BN 13 (0.18) HK centsi&fli  0.48 HK cents/& Il
Diluted iy 13 N/ATREHE 0.47 HK cents/B 1L

RXRENRISKEFRAF

—ETAETR
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Consolidated Balance Sheet

meEERER

At 31 March, 2009
—EFNFA=1T—H

Non-current assets EMBNE E
Property, plant and equipment ME - BB MR 14 212,145,546 235,385,262
Prepaid lease payments Ta Rt £ 30 & FRIE 15 3,162,905 3,251,515
Deposits for land use rights T (FERREST 33,793,575 31,515,152
Investment in an associate R—EBE R A2
wEa 16 17,724,714 =
266,826,740 270,151,929
Current assets mENEEE
Inventories =zg 17 72,025,090 111,527,718
Trade and other receivables B 5 R H A fEIIE 18 95,942,792 219,982,134
Prepaid lease payments TS+ AR & RRIE 15 88,610 88,610
Amount due from a related UL — & B A A
company FIE 19 1,362,753 198,845
Short-term bank deposits RHISRITIE K 20 264,234,274 301,193,143
Cash and cash equivalent HeLReEE 20 116,521,075 112,560,495
550,174,594 745,550,945
Current liabilities mEAE
Trade and other payables B 5 N E b fE R IE 21 47,343,116 91,161,530
Tax liabilities HIBEAE 1,243,331 947,356
Bank borrowings RITEE 22 1,092,530 6,044,735
49,678,977 98,153,621
Net current assets MENEEFE 500,495,617 647,397,324
Total assets less current liabilities BEERABSAE 767,322,357 917,549,253
Non-current liabilities FEREEE
Convertible notes A AR = 23 - 122,990,000
Deferred taxation EIETR IR 24 12,831,649 15,433,590
12,831,649 138,423,590
Net assets BESE 754,490,708 779,125,663
Capital and reserves B R
Share capital A&z 25 50,967,728 50,967,728
Reserves i 703,522,980 728,157,935
Total equity L b 754,490,708 779,125,663

TSR B EFEOBZHEHREK * B H
EFeR _EENFLA-_+THH#ER
BT WHINTEERREE

The financial statements on pages 41 to 99 were approved and
authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 20 July, 2009 and
are signed on its behalf by:

Suek Ka Lun, Ernie B E B
CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER & DIRECTOR 77483 ) & %

Chung Tai Printing Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2009

Suek Chai Hong EEE
DIRECTOR %



Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

mERRBER

For the year ended 31 March, 2009
BE-SEAF=A=1—AILFE

Share

capital
BA
HK$
BT

Share
premium
RiraE

HK$
BT

Convertible
notes equity
reserve
TERZE
Enfi
HK$

BT

Capital
redemption
reserve
EXRORE
HK$

BT

Translation
reserve
B
HK$

BT

Retained
profits
REER
HK$

BT

At 1 April, 2007 RZETLE
mA—H 33,227,728 73,718,196 — 62,400 17,200,866 447,129,271 571,338,461
Exchange differences arising from ~ R#AE S5 £15
translation of foreign operations MEEZELZE = - - - 15293231 - 15,293,231
Profit for the year TEERA = S S - - 39019742 39,019,742
Total recognised income RERE
for the year AW A58 - - - = 15,293,231 39,019,742 54,312,973
Issue of new shares BIHR 17,740,000 141,920,000 - - - - 159,660,000
Recognition of equity component ERARER
of convertible notes pa; -3 - - 17,110,000 - - - 17,110,000
Transaction costs attributable to IR
issue of new shares IR PR - (4,688,243 - - - - (4,688,243
Dividends paid ERRE = = = = - (18,607,528)  (18,607,528)
At 31 March, 2008 RZEENE
=A=t-H 50,967,728 210,949,953 17,110,000 62,400 32,494,097 467,541,485 779,125,663
Exchange differences arising from ~ R#AE S5 £15
translation of foreign operations MEEZERZS - = - - 5,662,479 - 5,662,479
Loss for the year AEEEE - - = = - (17,935606)  (17,935,606)
Total recognised income and expense  REERH#ER
for the year WA (i) % - - - - 5662479 (17,935,606)  (12,273,127)
Early redemption of EREM
convertible notes [RlES - - (17,110,000) - - 17,110,000 -
Dividends paid ERRE = = = - - (12,361,828)  (12,361,828)
At 31 March, 2009 RZETHE
=R=t+-H 50,967,728 210,949,953 - 62,400 38,156,576 454,354,051 754,490,708
RRENRISREFRAF
—TTNFFER
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement

MEHERERRK
For the Year ended 31 March, 2009
BE-SEAF=A=1—AUL5E

OPERATING ACTIVITIES

R

(Loss) profit before taxation RELRT (BE) = (16,015,609) 41,184,025
Adjustments for: EAEETHIFE%
Allowance for bad and doubtful debts RIBIREE 8,174,885 3,349,914
Share of loss of an associate FE(L—EEEE AR EE 904,686 =
Write-down of inventories WoRTF & 5,684,000 170,000
Depreciation of property, M - BERERETE
plant and equipment 33,464,326 36,650,496
Release of prepaid lease payments TEfT T A & RIE 2 B 5 88,610 88,610
Gain on disposal of property, HEME - BE Rk
plant and equipment Bt 2 W (53,422) (13,294,655)
Loss on redemption of convertible notes FEE MR Ei5 < E1E 1,451,449 =
Interest expense MEXZH 8,586,334 4,092,606
Interest income FEMA (6,734,535) (9,592,481)
Gain on fair value change of AN ERAFRE
held for trading investment NHEEBFGE K - (154,440)
Operating cash flows before RETEEECE TR
movements in working capital KERPMNE 35,550,724 62,494,075
Decrease (increase) in inventories FERD (3Em) 33,818,628 (19,455,631)
Decrease (increase) in trade and B 5 M E b fE W SR IE
other receivables B (35n) 118,256,300 (55,458,926)
Increase in amount due from a related FEUR — B B A A
company SRIAIE N (1,163,908) =
Decrease in held for trading investment A EBFFRERD - 3,900,000
(Decrease) increase in trade and B 5 N E b 5RIE
other payables OFi2) 8 (42,882,443) 26,870,972
Cash generated from operations KEXBMEE RS 143,579,301 18,350,490
Hong Kong Profits Tax paid EREBFEH (3,613,888) (1,411,409)
Overseas tax paid EAESNMRIE (612,075) (641,447)
NET CASH FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES REXEBIREEZ
REFHE 139,353,338 16,297,634
INVESTING ACTIVITIES REEE
Acquisition of an associate g B — R B2 A | (18,629,400) =
Deposit paid for acquisition of land BT TR & (2,278,423) =
Decrease (increase) in short term bank deposits %2 #iSR{TEZOR A (18 Hn) 36,958,869 (241,546,543)
Purchase of property, plant and equipment BAYZE - BE k& (9,281,388) (18,795,543)
Proceeds from disposal of property, HEME - BE R
plant and equipment FABAT1SRIE 53,422 16,520,500
Interest received B U F 2 6,734,535 9,592,481
NET CASH FROM (USED IN) RETE G (FT3E)
INVESTING ACTIVITIES Re&FE 13,557,615 (234,229,105)

Chung Tai Printing Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2009



Consolidated Cash Flow Statement

MEHERERRK
For the Year ended 31 March, 2009
BE-SEAF=A=1—AILFE

FINANCING ACTIVITIES MEEE
Repayment of bank import loans EERITAODER (31,336,104) (23,736,757)
New bank import loans raised FTIRITALDER 26,383,899 25,908,084
Dividends paid BERE (12,361,828) (18,607,528)
Interest paid EANEUESS (307,783) (292,606)
Repayment of convertible notes EREI Rl (132,720,000) =
Proceeds on issue of shares BITRRD PSR 1A - 159,660,000
Issue of convertible notes AT AR R - 140,000,000
Convertible notes transaction costs A] A% =R X 5 AN - (3,700,000)
Share issue expenses BIDEBEITHRIX - (4,688,243)
NET CASH (USED IN) FROM MEES (FTFE) B
FINANCING ACTIVITIES BEFEE (150,341,816) 274,542,950
NET INCREASE IN CASH AND ReERBELEE
CASH EQUIVALENT #hnE 5 2,569,137 56,611,479
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENT AT FNzRERBEEE
BEGINNING OF THE YEAR 112,560,495 54,127,617
EFFECT OF FOREIGN EXCHANGE EREFHTE
RATE CHANGES 1,391,443 1,821,399
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENT FERZBERBEEE
AT END OF THE YEAR 116,521,075 112,560,495
ANALYSIS OF THE BALANCES OF BERBEEELEH
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENT 23
Short-term bank deposits R ERRITE R 5,980,313 78,268,080
Bank balances and cash RITAARREAIR & 110,540,762 34,292,415
116,521,075 112,560,495
FRAENRISEM AR LT
“TTNEFR



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

= by S S

For the year ended 31 March, 2009
BE-SEAF=A=1—AIL5E

1.

GENERAL

The Company is incorporated in Bermuda as an exempted
company with limited liability and its shares are listed on The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited. Its ultimate holding
company is CNA Company Limited, a company incorporated in
the British Virgin Islands. The addresses of the registered office
and principal place of business of the Company are disclosed
in Corporate Information to the annual report.

The Company acts as an investment holding company. The
principal activities and other details of its subsidiaries and
associate are set out in notes 31 and 16 respectively.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong
Kong dollars (“HK$"), which is also the functional currency of
the Company.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs")

In the current year, the Group has applied the following
amendments and interpretations (“new HKFRSs"”) issued by the

Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA"),
which are or have become effective.

HKAS 39 and HKFRS 7
(Amendments)

Reclassification of financial assets

HK(IFRIC) — INT 12 Service concession arrangements

HK(IFRIC) — INT 14 HKAS 19 — The limit on
a defined benefit asset,
minimum funding requirements

and their interaction

The adoption of the new HKFRSs had no material effect
on how the results or financial position for the current or
prior accounting periods have been prepared and presented.
Accordingly, no prior year adjustment has been required.

Chung Tai Printing Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2009
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

by E S R

For the year ended 31 March, 2009
BE-SEAF=A=1—AILFE

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
("HKFRSs"”) (Continued)

The Group has not early applied the following new and revised
standards, amendments or interpretations that have been issued
but are not yet effective.

HKFRSs (Amendments) Improvements to HKFRSs'

HKFRSs (Amendments) Improvements to HKFRSs 2009 2

Presentation of financial
statements 3
Borrowing costs 3

HKAS 1 (Revised)
HKAS 23 (Revised)
HKAS 27 (Revised) Consolidated and separate
financial statements *
Puttable financial instruments
and obligations arising
on liquidation 3
Eligible hedged items *

HKAS 32 & 1
(Amendments)

HKAS 39 (Amendment)

HKFRS 1 & HKAS 27
(Amendments)

Cost of an investment in a
subsidiary, jointly controlled
entity or associate 3

Vesting conditions and
cancellations?

Business combinations #

HKFRS 2 (Amendment)
HKFRS 3 (Revised)
HKFRS 7 (Amendment) Improving disclosures about
financial instruments 3
HKFRS 8 Operating segments 3
HK(IFRIC) — INT 9 &
HKAS 39
(Amendments)

Embedded derivatives®

HK(IFRIC) — INT 13 Customer loyalty programmes ©

HK(IFRIC) — INT 15 Agreements for the construction

of real estate?
HK(IFRIC) = INT 16 Hedges of a net investment in a
foreign operation’
HK(IFRIC) — INT 17 Distributions of non-cash assets
to owners#
HK(IFRIC) — INT 18 Transfers of assets from
customers @
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e PR R M

For the year ended 31 March, 2009
BEZ _FEENFZH=1—HIFE

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG 2.
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
("HKFRSs"”) (Continued)

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January, 2009 except
the amendments to HKFRS 5, effective for annual periods beginning on or
after 1 July, 2009.

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January, 2009, 1 July,
2009 and 1 January, 2010, as appropriate.

3 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January, 2009.
& Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July, 2009.

B Effective for annual periods ending on or after 30 June, 2009.

® Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July, 2008.

g Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 October, 2008.
8 Effective for transfers on or after 1 July, 2009.

The application of HKFRS 3 (Revised) may affect the Group’s
accounting for business combination for which the acquisition
date is on or after 1 April, 2010. HKAS 27 (Revised) will affect
the accounting treatment for changes in the Group's ownership
interest in a subsidiary. The directors of the Company anticipate
that the application of the other new and revised standards,
amendments or interpretations will have no material impact on
the results and the financial position of the Group.

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on
the historical cost basis as explained in the accounting policies
set out below.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with accounting policies which conform with Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by the HKICPA.
In addition, the consolidated financial statements include
applicable disclosures required by the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited and by the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Chung Tai Printing Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2009

FERFEI REBT 2B RN
BREED (HFEMBRSE
R 1) (%)

RZZTTZhF—A Bk %Rz FEH
MER (RZZTZNFEA—BHIAERR
2 EE BB ERZ BB HRE %R E55%
ZAEETBRIN) ©

2 R-ZZEThE—F—A  —TTNAFLA—
BR=Z—ZF—A—8 (@A) k&
FR 2 G BRI AR o

9 RZZTNF—A—B2ERARZFEH

FAER °

4 RZZEZNFLA B Z2ERRZFER
FAER °

s R-ZBTAFEANA=ZTHRZBERZFE
HARAE K ©

e RZZEZNFLA B zERRZFER
FIAER °

7 RZZEZNF+A—BazERRZFER
FIAER °

g HR-_ZTZNFLtA BB zEEL
B e

ERBBMBHRELERNFEINR (K
R AR EAREKRBRMS
E-EFMA-BHZEBREKSH
SETRE - BB S ERFE27H
(R1ER]) BeaFEASERHEA
Al 2B h IR BB 2 @51
BRI - RARIEZAHEAEAMHN
FI RARIERT R - ERTHR BT
T ALK KA RS E K
BEXFE -

TESFEE

A MBHRRIVIRE LA EER
B FRBR TSR -

HEMBRRIRENSEEG
B AgRZBEMBREEDZ
SRR RE I HE MBI
REEETBMERIMBRAAE
# R A NEB R RHRDIPTRE
ZERREER -



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

by E S e R

For the year ended 31 March, 2009
BE-SEAF=A=1—AILFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial
statements of the Company and entities controlled by the
Company (its subsidiaries). Control is achieved where the
Company has the power to govern the financial and operating
policies of an entity so as to obtain benefits from its activities.

The results of subsidiaries acquired or disposed of during the
year are included in the consolidated income statement from
the effective date of acquisition or up to the effective date of
disposal, as appropriate.

Where necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies
into line with those used by the Group.

All intra-group transactions, balances, income and expenses are
eliminated on consolidation.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable and represents amounts receivable for
goods sold in the normal course of business, net of discounts
and sales related taxes.

Revenue from sales of goods are recognised when goods are
delivered and title has passed.

Interest income from a financial asset is accrued on a time basis,
by reference to the principal outstanding and at the effective
interest rate applicable, which is the rate that exactly discounts
the estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of
the financial asset to that asset’s net carrying amount.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 March, 2009
BE-SEAF=A=1—AIL5E

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment, other than construction in
progress, are stated at cost less subsequent accumulated
depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if any.

Construction in progress represents property, plant and
equipment in the course of construction for production or
for its own use purposes. Construction in progress is carried
at cost less any recognised impairment loss. Construction in
progress is classified to the appropriate category of property,
plant and equipment when completed and ready for intended
use. Depreciation of these assets, on the same basis as other
property assets, commences when the assets are ready for their
intended use.

Depreciation is provided to write off the cost of items of
property, plant and equipment, other than construction in
progress, over their estimated useful lives and after taking into
account of their estimated residual value, using the straight-line
method.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon
disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected
to arise from the continued use of the asset. Any gain or
loss arising on derecognition of the asset (calculated as the
difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying
amount of the item) is included in the consolidated income
statement in the year in which the item is derecognised.

Prepaid lease payments

Prepaid lease payments of land under operating lease are
charged to the consolidated income statement on a straight
line basis over the lease terms.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

by E S e R

For the year ended 31 March, 2009
BE-SEAF=A=1—AILFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Investment in an associate

An associate is an entity over which the investor has significant
influence and that is neither a subsidiary nor an interest in a

joint venture.

The results and assets and liabilities of associate are incorporated
in these consolidated financial statements using the equity
method of accounting. Under the equity method, investment
in an associate is carried in the consolidated balance sheet at
cost as adjusted for post-acquisition changes in the Group’s
share of the net assets of the associates, less any identified
impairment loss. When the Group’s share of losses of an
associate equals or exceeds its interest in that associate (which
includes any long-term interests that, in substance, form
part of the Group’s net investment in the associate), the
Group discontinues recognising its share of further losses.
An additional share of losses is provided for and a liability is
recognised only to the extent that the Group has incurred legal
or constructive obligations or made payments on behalf of that

associate.

Any excess of the Group’s share of the net fair value of the
identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities over
the cost of acquisition, after reassessment, is recognised

immediately in profit or loss.

Where a group entity transacts with an associate of the Group,
profits and losses are eliminated to the extent of the Group’s

interest in the relevant associate.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Cost is calculated using the first-in, first-out method.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 March, 2009
BE-SEAF=A=1—AIL5E

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Impairment losses

At each balance sheet date, the Group reviews the carrying
amounts of its assets to determine whether there is any
indication that those assets have suffered an impairment loss. If
the recoverable amount of an asset is estimated to be less than
its carrying amount, the carrying amount of the asset is reduced
to its recoverable amount. An impairment loss is recognised as
an expense immediately.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying
amount of the asset is increased to the revised estimate
of its recoverable amount, such that the increased carrying
amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have
been determined had no impairment loss been recognised for
the asset in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is
recognised as income immediately.

Borrowing costs

All borrowing costs are recognised as and included in finance
costs in the consolidated income statement in the period in
which they are incurred.

Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently
payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year.
Taxable profit differs from profit as reported in the consolidated
income statement because it excludes items of income or
expense that are taxable or deductible in other years and it
further excludes items that are never taxable or deductible.
The Group’s liability for current tax is calculated using tax rates
that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the balance
sheet date.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Taxation (Continued)

Deferred tax is recognised on differences between the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities in the consolidated financial
statements and the corresponding tax base used in the
computation of taxable profit, and is accounted for using
the balance sheet liability method. Deferred tax liabilities are
generally recognised for all taxable temporary differences
and deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is
probable that taxable profits will be available against which
deductible temporary differences can be utilised. Such assets
and liabilities are not recognised if the temporary difference
arises from the initial recognition (other than in a business
combination) of other assets and liabilities in a transaction that
affects neither the taxable profit nor the accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences arising on investments in subsidiaries and associate,
except where the Group is able to control the reversal of the
temporary difference and it is probable that the temporary
difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax asset is reviewed at each
balance sheet date and reduced to the extent that it is no
longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available
to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax is calculated at the tax rates that are expected
to apply in the year when the liability is settled or the asset is
realised. Deferred tax is charged or credited to profit or loss,
except when it relates to items charged or credited directly
to equity, in which case the deferred tax is also dealt with in
equity.
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ra= by E T Y S

For the year ended 31 March, 2009
BE-SEAF=A=1—AILFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Leasing

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms
of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership to the lessee. All other leases are classified as
operating leases.

Rentals payable under operating leases are charged to profit or
loss on a straight-line basis over the term of the relevant lease.
Benefits received and receivable as an incentive to enter into an
operating lease are recognised as a reduction of rental expense
over the lease term on a straight-line basis.

Leasehold land and building

The land and building elements of a lease of land and building
are considered separately for the purpose of lease classification,
unless the lease payments cannot be allocated reliably between
the land and building elements, in which case, the entire lease
is classified as a finance lease and accounted for as property,
plant and equipment. To the extent the allocation of the lease
payments can be made reliably, leasehold interests in land are
accounted for as operating leases.

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual group
entity, transactions in currencies other than the functional
currency of that entity (foreign currencies) are recorded in the
respective functional currency (i.e. the currency of the primary
economic environment in which the entity operates) at the
rates of exchanges prevailing on the dates of the transactions.
At each balance sheet date, monetary items denominated
in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing
on the balance sheet date. Non-monetary items that are
measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are
not retranslated.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Foreign currencies (Continued)

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary
items, and on the translation of monetary items, are recognised
in profit or loss in the period in which they arise.

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated financial
statements, the assets and liabilities of the Group’s foreign
operations are translated into the presentation currency of
the Group (i.e. Hong Kong dollars) at the rate of exchange
prevailing at the balance sheet date, and their income and
expenses are translated at the average exchange rates for the
year, unless exchange rates fluctuate significantly during the
period, in which case, the exchange rates prevailing at the
dates of transactions are used. Exchange differences arising,
if any, are recognised as a separate component of equity (the
translation reserve). Such exchange differences are recognised
in profit or loss in the period in which the foreign operation is
disposed of.

Retirement benefit costs

Payments to defined contribution retirement benefits schemes
and state-managed retirement benefit schemes are charged as
an expense when employees have rendered service entitling
them to the contributions.

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised on the
balance sheet when a group entity becomes a party to the
contractual provisions of the instruments. Financial assets
and financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value.
Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition
or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities (other than
financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value through
profit or loss) are added to or deducted from the fair value of
the financial assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on
initial recognition. Transaction costs directly attributable to the
acquisition of financial assets or financial liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss are recognised immediately in profit or
loss.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets

The Group’s financial assets are classified as loans and
receivables. All regular way purchases or sales of financial assets
are recognised and derecognised on a trade date basis. Regular
way purchases or sales are purchases or sales of financial assets
that require delivery of assets within the time frame established
by regulation or convention in the marketplace. The accounting
policies adopted in respect of each category of financial assets
are set out below.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial asset and of allocating interest
income over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is
the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts
(including all fees on points paid or received that form an
integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs
and other premiums or discounts) through the expected life
of the financial asset, or, where appropriate, a shorter period.
Income is recognised on an effective interest basis for debt
instruments.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with
fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an
active market. At each balance sheet date subsequent to initial
recognition, loans and receivables (including trade and other
receivables, amount due from a related company, short-term
bank deposits and bank balances) are carried at amortised
cost using the effective interest method, less any identified
impairment losses (see accounting policy on impairment loss
on financial asses below).
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets

Financial assets are assessed for indicators of impairment at
each balance sheet date. Financial assets are impaired where
there is objective evidence that, as a result of one or more
events that occurred after the initial recognition of the financial
asset, the estimated future cash flows of the financial assets
have been impacted.

For loans and receivables, objective evidence of impairment
could include:

e significant financial difficulty of the issuer or counterparty;
or

e default or delinquency in interest or principal payments;
or

e it becoming probable that the borrower will enter
bankruptcy or financial re-organisation.

For certain categories of financial assets, such as trade
receivables, assets that are assessed not to be impaired
individually are subsequently assessed for impairment on
a collective basis. Objective evidence of impairment for a
portfolio of receivables could include Group's past experience
of collecting payments and observable changes in national
or local economic conditions that correlate with default on
receivables.

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, an impairment loss
is recognised in profit or loss when there is objective evidence
that the asset is impaired, and is measured as the difference
between the asset’s carrying amount and the present value
of the estimated future cash flows discounted at the original
effective interest rate.

The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced by
the impairment loss directly for all financial assets with the
exception of trade receivables where the carrying amount is
reduced through the use of an allowance account. Changes in
the carrying amount of the allowance account are recognised
in profit or loss. When the trade receivables are considered
uncollectible, it is written off against the allowance account.
Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously written off are
credited to profit or loss.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

For financial assets measured at amortised cost, if, in a
subsequent period, the amount of impairment loss decreases
and the decrease can be related objectively to an event
occurring after the impairment loss was recognised, the
previously recognised impairment loss is reversed through profit
or loss to the extent that the carrying amount of the asset at
the date the impairment is reversed does not exceed what the
amortised cost would have been had the impairment not been
recognised.

Financial liabilities and equity

Financial liabilities and equity instruments issued by a group
entity are classified according to the substance of the contractual
arrangements entered into and the definitions of a financial
liability and an equity instrument.

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual
interest in the assets of the Group after deducting all of its
liabilities. The accounting policies adopted in respect of financial
liabilities and equity instruments are set out below.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial liability and of allocating interest
expense over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is
the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments
through the expected life of the financial liability, or, where
appropriate, a shorter period. Interest expense is recognised on
an effective interest basis.

Chung Tai Printing Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2009

FESTEE (8)

TR T A (&)
EHEERE ()
RRBERAGFEZEREEM
5 WREBRESBERERER
A BRI R B b S R E S
BREEZEMHER - BIEATHER
ZREBERDEBRABEE - X
BENRBOREE B ZEEEN
BEETEERREZBELNES
ZBESHN o

B ERE

SEERRTZERABENMEAT
BERBAILZAENRHZEENR
BARERBEREATAZESR

mER#A °

PN T B8 6L 38 PR B AN S B ARk
BREMBABRRZIEET ZRHE
BZEMEH - BB EREXR
TARBZEABREN T

BEFIEX

ERNBEDRNEBEREREGTE
TR BB AR R B H D
2% BERNEERBER G A
BEMNRESESRABZAYA
ERFHAREHE (HER) &
TIFBZHME - MEAXRERF
FORMER



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e B R R M

For the year ended 31 March, 2009
HE-FENF=A=+—ALFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial liabilities and equity (Continued)

Convertible notes contain liability and equity
components, and early redemption option derivative

Convertible notes issued by the Group that contain liability,
conversion option and early redemption option are classified
separately into respective items on initial recognition. Conversion
option that will be settled by the exchange of a fixed amount
of cash or another financial asset for a fixed number of the
Company’s own equity instruments is classified as an equity
instrument. At the date of issue, both the liability and early
redemption option components are measured at fair value.
The difference between the gross proceeds of the issue of the
convertible notes and the fair values assigned to the liability and
early redemption option components respectively, representing
the conversion option for the holder to convert the notes into
equity, is included in equity (convertible notes equity reserve).

In subsequent periods, the liability component and early
redemption option (which is closely related to the host liability
component) of the convertible notes is carried at amortised cost
using the effective interest method.

The equity component, representing the option to convert the
liability component into ordinary shares of the Company, will
remain in convertible notes equity reserve until the conversion
option is exercised (in which case the balance stated in
convertible notes equity reserve will be transferred to share
premium). Where the conversion option remains unexercised at
the expiry date, the balance stated in convertible notes equity
reserve will be released to the retained profits. No gain or loss
is recognised in profit or loss upon conversion or expiration of
the conversion option.

Transaction costs that relate to the issue of the convertible
notes are allocated to the liability, equity and early redemption
option components in proportion to the allocation of the gross
proceeds. Transaction costs relating to the equity component are
charged directly to equity. Transaction costs relating to the early
redemption option are charged to profit or loss immediately.
Transaction costs relating to the liability component are included
in the carrying amount of the liability portion and amortised
over the period of the convertible notes using the effective
interest method.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial liabilities and equity (Continued)

Other financial liabilities

Other financial liabilities including trade and other payables and
bank borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised cost,
using the effective interest method.

Equity instruments

Equity instruments issued by the Company are recorded at the
proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

Derecognition

Financial assets are derecognised when the rights to receive
cash flows from the assets expire or, the financial assets are
transferred and the Group has transferred substantially all
the risks and rewards of ownership of the financial assets.
On derecognition of a financial asset, the difference between
the asset’s carrying amount and the sum of the consideration
received and receivable and the cumulative gain or loss that
had been recognised directly in equity is recognised in profit
or loss.

Financial liabilities are derecognised when the obligation
specified in the relevant contract is discharged, cancelled or
expires. The difference between the carrying amount of the
financial liability derecognised and the consideration paid and
payable is recognised in profit or loss.

On redemption of convertible notes through exercising an
embedded early redemption option, the difference between the
amount of repayment and the carrying amount of the liability
component at redemption date is recognised as a gain or loss
directly in the consolidated income statement.

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY

The following are the key assumptions concerning the future,
and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the balance
sheet date, that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
within the next financial year.
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4.

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
(Continued)

Estimated impairment of trade receivables

In determining whether there is objective evidence of impairment
loss, the Group takes into consideration the estimation of future
cash flows. The amount of the impairment loss is measured as
the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the
present value of estimated future cash flows (excluding future
credit losses that have not been incurred) discounted at the
financial asset’s original effective interest rate (i.e. the effective
interest rate computed at initial recognition). Where the actual
future cash flows are less than expected, a material impairment
loss may arise.

Depreciation

Property, plant and equipment are depreciated on a straight-line
basis over the estimated useful lives of the relevant assets, after
taking into account their estimated residual value, if any. The
Group reviews the estimated useful lives of the assets annually
in order to determine the amount of depreciation expenses to
be recorded during the year. The useful lives are based on the
Group’s historical experience with similar assets taking into
account anticipated technological changes. The depreciation
expenses for future periods are adjusted if there are significant
changes from previous estimates.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Categories of financial instruments
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5.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Financial risk management objectives and policies

The Group’s major financial instruments include trade and
other receivables, amount due from a related company,
short-term bank deposits, bank balances, trade and other
payables, convertible notes and bank borrowings. Details of
these financial instruments are disclosed in respective notes.
The risks associated with these financial instruments include
market risk (interest rate risk, currency risk and other price risk),
credit risk and liquidity risk and the policies on how to mitigate
these risks are set out below. The management manages and
monitors these exposures to ensure appropriate measures are
implemented on a timely and effective manner.

Market risk

(i)  Currency risk

Several subsidiaries of the Group have foreign currency
sales and purchases, which expose the Group to foreign
currency risk. In addition, certain trade receivables, bank
balances, trade payables, bank borrowings of the Group
are denominated in Renminbi (“RMB”), United States
dollars (“USD"), Euro and Australian dollars (“AUD"),
the currencies other than the functional currency of
the respective group entities as disclosed in notes 18,
20, 21 and 22 respectively. Approximately 30% of the
Group'’s sales are denominated in currencies other than
the functional currency of the group entity making the
sale, whilst almost 20% of costs are denominated in
currencies other than the functional currency of the group
entity’s functional currency. The Group currently does
not have a foreign currency hedging policy. However, the
management monitors foreign exchange exposure and will
consider hedging significant foreign currency exposure
should the need arise.

Chung Tai Printing Holdings Limited
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5. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 5.

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Market risk (Continued)
(i) Currency risk (Continued)

The carrying amounts of the Group’s foreign currency
denominated monetary assets and monetary liabilities at
the reporting date are approximately as follows:

LRI A (&)
MHEREEEERBE (&)

m5EE (E)
() SMNERSE (&)

AEEUINEFECEREE
EEEBAERREBHZER
BEfQWT

Assets Liabilities
BE =F
2009 2009
—EBAEF —EBNEF

HKS$ HKS$

BT BT
usD £ 199,815,000 176,167,000 1,093,000 6,045,000
RMB AR - - 19,621,000 59,891,000
AUD SR IT 75,094,000 - - -
Others Hib - 2,499,000 403,000 569,000
Sensitivity analysis BRE DT
Since the exchange rate of HK$ is pegged with USD, the BB TEREETTES - K
Group does not expect any significant movements in the SEBEHET BT ZEEXR

USD/HK$ exchange rates.

The following table details the Group’s sensitivity to a 10%
(2008: 5%) increase and decrease in HK$ against relevant
foreign currencies (other than USD) and all other variables
were held constant. 10% (2008: 5%) is the sensitivity rate
used and represents management’s assessment of the
reasonably possible change in foreign exchange rates. As
a result of volatile market, the sensitivity rate is increased
to 10% in the current year. The sensitivity analysis includes
only outstanding foreign currency denominated monetary
items, and adjusts their translation at the year end for
a 10% (2008: 5%) change in foreign currency rates. A
positive number below indicates a decrease in loss (2008:
an increase in profit) for the year where Hong Kong dollars
strengthen 10% (2008: 5%) against RMB and a negative
number below indicates an increase in loss for the year
2009 when HK$ strengthen 10% against AUD respectively.
For a 10% (2008: 5%) weakening of Hong Kong dollars
against RMB or AUD respectively, there would be an equal
and opposite impact on the result for the year.

SLBEMEAED -

TRINEAEBRBETLHLER
HNEE (NBHEET) AERE
BE10% (ZTEENEF :5%) Z

HEEE(L  BR— Y EhE
BT o B E (R
BA BB IE BB P PR 2 B

r%tt%;%m% T )\ F
5%) °c RIS TERE) - &
FE R Emfﬁzm% B
RREDTRABERTEINE 5
@f%ﬁa W R FRIZE R
HIR10% _%%/\iw%)
EHUBE T UARE - TXIE
FRMEBTEAREAEI0%
(ZEZENF :5%) BERT
AEEEBEBEAEMRL (ZZ2Z
A\E mFABRTEM) KX
BERMAETHBITAEIOY
MBR T —ZEZENFEEEAHN
B0 e MBI R AR
BT E10% (Z T )\ 4F ¢
5%) HIAFE2EENER
HRS%BEERAR 2 ZE -

K EIRI KA R
—ETAETR



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

by E T S

For the year ended 31 March, 2009
—EENF=A=1—HIFFE

BZE—

5.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Market risk (Continued)

(1)

(ir)

Currency risk (Continued)

Sensitivity analysis (Continued)

LRI A (&)
BHEREEERERBEE (&)

TSR ()
(1) SMNERER (&)
BREE ST (8)

Impact of AUD

Impact of RMB

BRaozsg AR ZZE
HK$ HK$
BT BT
2009 —ZETNF
(Increase) decrease in loss for the year ZAFEEEE (3E0) B (7,509,400) 1,962,100
2008 —ET)\F
Increase in profit for the year NG T i A1 AN = 2,994,550
Interest rate risk (i) F &
Fair value interest rate risk NHEMNEE
The Group’s fair value interest rate risk relates primarily REB A EFNERRE
to fixed-rate bank borrowings and convertible notes. The w K& E B —?—Z'fﬁfﬂﬁ%&—f
Group has not used any derivative instruments to hedge BREE AEBEWEKAE

its exposure to interest rate risk. The directors consider the
Group's exposure to interest rate risk is not significant as
the bank borrowings are within short maturing period.

Cash flow interest rate risk

The Group’s cash flow interest rate risk primarily relates
to variable-rate bank deposits, bank balances and bank
borrowings. The Group has not used any derivative
instruments in order to mitigate its exposure associated
with fluctuations relating to interest cash flows. However,
the management monitors interest rate exposure and will
consider other necessary actions when significant interest
rate exposure is anticipated.
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5. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Financial risk management objectives and policies

(Continued)
Market risk (Continued)

(if) Interest rate risk (Continued)

Sensitivity analysis

The impact on the Group’s cash flow is due in part to its
sensitivity to interest rate which has been determined based
on the exposure to the variable-rate bank deposits, bank
balances and bank borrowings. The analysis is prepared
assuming the amount of asset outstanding at the balance
sheet date was outstanding for the whole year. A 100
basis point increase or decrease is used which represents
management’s assessment of the reasonable possible

change in interest rates.

If interest rates had been 100 basis points higher/lower
and all other variables were held constant, the Group’s
loss for the year would decrease/increase by approximately
HK$3,795,000 (2008: profit for the year would increase/
decrease by HK$4,077,000). This is mainly attributable to
the Group’s exposure to interest rates on its variable-rate

bank deposits and balances.

Credit risk

The Group's credit risk is primarily attributable to trade and other
receivables, short-term bank deposits and bank balances.

As at 31 March, 2009, the Group’s maximum exposure to credit
risk which will cause a financial loss to the Group due to failure
to discharge an obligation by the counterparties is the carrying
amounts of the respective recognised financial assets as stated

in the consolidated balance sheet.

In order to minimise the credit risk, the management of the
Group has delegated a team responsible for determination of
credit limits, credit approvals and other monitoring procedures
to ensure that follow-up action is taken to recover overdue
debts. In addition, management reviews the recoverable amount
of each individual trade debt at each balance sheet date
to ensure that adequate impairment losses are made for

irrecoverable amounts.

The credit risk on liquid funds is limited because the
counterparties are banks with high credit ratings assigned by
international credit-rating agencies.

There is no significant concentration of credit risk in receivables
as the exposure spread over a number of counterparties and

customers.
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5.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Liquidity risk

As at 31 March, 2009, the Group has undiscounted cash flows
of approximately HK$1,102,000 (2008: HK$6,226,000) on bank
borrowings payable within one year. The carrying amount of
such bank borrowings is approximately HK$1,093,000 (2008:
HK$6,045,000).

As at 31 March, 2008, the Group has convertible notes with
contractual cash outflow of HK$142.8 million that was due in
20009.

Except for bank borrowings and convertible notes as stated
above, the directors consider that liquidity risk is limited
after considering the future cash flows of the Group in the
foreseeable future as the Group has mainly non-interest bearing
short-term liabilities which are to be repaid within three months
from respective balance sheet dates.

In the management of the liquidity risk, the Group monitors
and maintains a level of cash and cash equivalents deemed
adequate by the management to finance the Group’s operations
and mitigate the effects of fluctuations in cash flows. The
management monitors the utilisation of borrowings and ensures
compliance with loan covenants.

Fair values

The fair values of other financial assets and financial liabilities
carried at amortised cost are determined in accordance with
generally accepted pricing models based on discounted cash
flow analysis using the relevant prevailing market rates.

The directors of the Company consider that the carrying
amounts of financial assets and financial liabilities recorded
at amortised cost in the consolidated financial statements
approximate their fair value.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e B R R M

For the year ended 31 March, 2009
B —FEENF=H="+—HIFFE

6.

REVENUE AND BUSINESS AND GEOGRAPHICAL
SEGMENTS

Revenue, which is also turnover of the Group, represents the
amounts received and receivable for goods sold by the Group,
less returns and allowances during the year.

Geographical segments

The location of customers is the basis on which the Group
reports its primary segment information. The following is an
analysis of the Group’s segment information for the year ended
31 March, 2009 and 2008 by location of customers.

Consolidated income statement for the year ended
31 March, 2009

Other regions
in the People’s
Republic of
China ("PRC")
PEARLNE

Hong Kong (TheEl)
B e
HK$ HK$
A BT

LY E SIS TR

Wa (MAVAKBE 2 X)) A
SEFARELERAMRNEYK
RIEFER OGRS RITH) -

HEDE

AEBBRRFMEMREREES
HER - AEBEHE_ZZTAER
—EENFE=ZA=+—HILEEIRK
BEEFEMEE D ZOBER DT
I o

BE-ZZAF=A=+—HLHF
ERe R

United States

Europe  of America Others  Consolidated

Bl XH At Re
HKS HKS HKS
AL B B BT

Revenue ey 413,385,896 194,178,948 7,378,921 64,639,722 11,911,522 691,495,009
Segment result NEEE 55,510,775 26,074,967 990,865 8,680,028 1,599,517 92,856,152
Unallocated corporate expenses APRAEZM (107,073,384)
Gain on disposal of property, HENE  BERAE

plant and equipment paiG: 53,422
Interest income FMEMA 6,734,535
Finance costs RERA (8,586,334)
Loss before taxation BHAEE (16,015,609)
Taxation 1B (1,919,997)
Loss for the year ~EEBR (17,935,606)

RRENRISREFRAF

—TENFEH



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 March, 2009
BE-SEAF=A=1—AIL5E

6. REVENUE AND BUSINESS AND GEOGRAPHICAL
SEGMENTS (Continued)

Geographical segments (Continued)

Consolidated balance sheet at 31 March, 2009

Other regions
in the PRC
TEEMHE
HKS

i

Hong Kong
B
HKS
i

Europe
Bl
HK§
i

6. WENREBLRMEDH (&)

HWESE (&)

R-BEAF=ZA=+—-HB2Z&E
EEEER

United States
of America
EL

HKS

B

Unallocated ~ Consolidated
AR
HK$
B

Others
b
HKS
B

A
=)
HKS
AT

Assets BE
Segment assets NEBE 48,356,679 31,646,682 3,554,270 6,282,820 2,321,590 326,359,230 418,521,271
Investment in an associate REERAZRE 17,724,114
Unallocated corporate assets ~ AAEAEEE 380,755,349
Total consolidated assets GREES[E 817,001,334
Liabilties 8
Unallocated corporate ANBLEEER
liahilties and total REELE
consolidated liabilities

Other information for the year ended 31 March, 2009

Other regions

Hong Kong

B
HKS
BT

in the PRC
HEAMHE

HK$

Gt
BT

62,510,626

BE—_SZEhAE=A=1+—HLE
EzHMER

United States
of America
E3E]

HKS

BT

Other
Heh
HK$

=
7BJL

Consolidated
e
HK$
BT

Europe

REERR

Allowance for bad and

doubtful debts 3,801

8,171,084

8,174,885

Chung Tai Printing Holdings Limited
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For the year ended 31 March, 2009
BE-SEAF=A=1—AILFE

6.

REVENUE AND BUSINESS AND GEOGRAPHICAL
SEGMENTS (Continued)

Geographical segments (Continued)

Consolidated income statement for the year ended

31 March, 2008

Hong Kong
£
HK$
BT

Other regions
in the People’s
Republic of
China (“PRC")
REAR
£AE

(e )
e

HK$

BT

6.

WmKkEHEARE S E (&)

wEsE (&)

BE—_SZTN\E=A=+—HLE
EiFaWEx

Europe
B
HKS
BT

United States
of America Other  Consolidated
%8 Hfth &a
HKS HKS$ HKS
BT BT BT

Revenue Wi 427,656,609 173,352,126 4,477310 78,804,867 44.272,233 728,563,145
Segment result PE5E 55,122,009 22,193,910 577,095 10,157,411 5,706,390 93,756,835
Unallocated corporate expenses AARGELM (71,521,780)
Gain on disposal of property, HEWE  BER
plant and equipment Hib g 13,294,655
Gain on fair value change AEHERRR
of held for trading investment NFEEmENG 154,440
Interest income EMA 9,592,481
Finance costs BERA (4,092,606)
Profit before taxation Il 41,184,025
Taxation HE (2,164,283)
Profit for the year KEE ST 39,019,742
hRENRISREFRAF
—TENFEH
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6.

REVENUE AND BUSINESS AND GEOGRAPHICAL
SEGMENTS (Continued)

Geographical segments (Continued)

Consolidated balance sheet at 31 March, 2008

Other regions
in the PRC
TEEMHE
HKS

i

Hong Kong
B
HK§
i

Europe

6. WENREBRMED M (&)

wEsE (&)

R-BENF=ZA=+—-HB2Z&HSE
EEEER

United States
of America
EL

HK$

B

Other Consolidated

it
HK$

B

Unallocated
AR

HK$

B

A
=)
HKS
AT

B
HKS
BT

Assets EE
Segment assets NEEE 86,126,306 52,606,999 5,987,419 9,245,372 15,590,562 432,392,578 601,949,236
Unallocated corporate assets ~ AAELEEE 413,753,638
Total consolidated assets GREELE 1,015,702,874
Liabilities af
Unallocated corporate PREFERER
liabilties and GABREAE
total consolidated liabilities

Other information for the year ended 31 March, 2008

Other regions
in the PRC
hEAfLE

Hong Kong
£

HK$

B

236,577,211

BE—_ESEN\E=A=1+—HLE
EzHMER

United States
of America
EL:

HK$

i
/BJL

Consolidated

&8

Other
Hith
HKS
BT

Europe
BA
HK§

RIERRBE

Allowance for bad and

doubtful debts 1,087 3,348,827 = = = 3,349,914
No analysis of capital expenditure, depreciation, prepaid lease EERAE ARBRZRBREEREERT

payments charged and write-down of inventories by location
of customers is disclosed for the year as in the opinion of
the directors, there is no appropriate basis in allocating the
property, plant and equipment, inventories and prepaid lease
payments by location of customers.

FrREtRDEYE  BE LR
- FEREMTHEERE W
WERBERNFEREFPMAERD
FZBEAX L - & - EHKREN
T E A R S OB
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For the year ended 31 March, 2009
BE—_EENF=A=+—HIFEF

6. REVENUE AND BUSINESS AND GEOGRAPHICAL
SEGMENTS (Continued)

Geographical segments (Continued)

The following is an analysis of the carrying amount of segment
assets at the balance sheet date, and additions to property, plant
and equipment during the year, analysed by the geographical
area in which the assets are located:

Carrying amount
of segment assets

6. WEREHRBESE (H)

WESHE (&)
DHEEENGEERAZCEREEELEY

X BEMRBRAFEZRNER
BEREEMTHESTET

Additions to property,
plant and equipment

PEEERHEE M- BERREFE
2009 2008 2009 2008
—EEhE —ZTN\FE ZBBAF TITN\F
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
BT BT BT BT
Hong Kong BE 121,500,831 203,665,201 1,598,378 5,758,921
Other regions in the PRC b B A b [ 297,020,440 398,284,035 7,683,010 13,036,622
418,521,271 601,949,236 9,281,388 18,795,543
Business segments k|

The Group's revenue and results are derived from the printing
business. Accordingly, no analysis by business segments is
presented.

7. FINANCE COSTS

ANEEz e M EEKREBER %
%o At RBRINREB OB ZS
A e

7. BB

IATIRE ZFE

Interest on:

BARAFATHEEZ

Bank borrowings wholly repayable

within five years RITEE 307,783 292,606
Effective interest expense on AMHARR =R BRI B A
convertible notes (note 23) (K15£23) 8,278,551 3,800,000
8,586,334 4,092,606
hRENRISREFRAF
—ETNEEN
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8. DIRECTORS' EMOLUMENTS

The emoluments paid or payable to each of the 13 (2008: 11)
directors were as follows:

Executive directors

) £

Lau Chin Suek

Ng Suek, Hung,  ChaiKit,

Wai Chi Chai Hong Edwin Christopher
25 HEE E
HKS HKS HKS HKS
A v 7 7

8. EEM=

KTAERLERFI36 (Z2T
NE 1% HEZBS

Non-executive directors

FAOES

Chan
Kwing
Choi,
Warren
Rift
HKS
A

Wong
Sun Fat
EHE
HKS
A

Tse
Tin Tai
xR

HKS

#R

Alternate directors

#fEs

Ng

Wai Yung,
Angela
RER
HKS

A

(Note 3)

Lau
Kam
Cheong
888
HK$
ER

(Note

2009 ZEENE
Fees Hg - - - - 238329 12,500 377,500 12,500 12,500 12,500 12,500 - - 28329
Other emoluments A
- Salaries and - HEREMER

other benefits 533,250 - 526,500 1,170,000 - - - - - - - 1489350 319,781 4,038,881
- Contributions R GTREEe

to retirement

benefits schemes 26,662 - 12,000 12,000 - - - - - - - 348 12000 95130
Total emoluments Heag 559,912 - 538500 1,182,000 2,383,290 12,500 377,500 12,500 12,500 12,500 12,500 1,521,818 331,781 6,957,301

Executive directors

i

Lau Chin Suek
Ng Suek Suek Hung,  ChaiKit,

Wai Chi ChaiHong  Kalun Edwin Christopher
REZ  BEE  HEB  UEM  EEf
HKS HK§ HKS HKS HKS
o v o B BT
(Note b)

Suek,
Che Hin

e

T

HKS
7

Chan
Kwing
Choi,
Warren
Rt
HKS§
BT
(Note ¢)

Non-executive directors

FYTES

Wong  Au Yan,
Sun Fat Alfred
ik B
HKS HKS
BT En
Note q)

Tse
Tin Tai
EF

HK§

B

2008 “EINE
Fees e = = = - - - 210,000 - - - - 210,000
Other emoluments Efdie
~ Salaries and -8R
other benefits AthEH 513,000 108,000 528,000 972,000 2,211,600 - - - - - - 4332600
- Contributions - RIFER
to retirement HE
benefits schemes 27,000 - 12,000 12,000 116,400 - - - - - - 167,400
Total emoluments Hees 540,000 108,000 540,000 984,000 2,328,000 - 210,000 - - - 4,710,000
Notes: et -
(@)  Ms. Ng Wai Yung, Angela and Mr. Lau Kam Cheong have been appointed as (a) ZREBZLTNBIBELELDREZEAES

alternate directors of Mr. Suek Che Hin and Mr. Ng Wai Kwan respectively
with effect from 9 July, 2008.

(b)  Dr. Suek Chai Kit, Christopher has been re-designated as a non-executive
director of the Company from an executive director with effect from 29
November, 2007.

Chung Tai Printing Holdings Limited
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

by E S R

For the year ended 31 March, 2009
BE-SEAF=A=1—AILFE

8. DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS (Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

(c) Mr. Chan Kwing Choi, Warren has been re-designated as a non-executive
director of the Company from an independent non-executive director with

effect from 29 November, 2007.

(d)  Mr. Au Yan, Alfred has been appointed as an independent non-executive
director of the Company with effect from 29 November, 2007.

(e)  The directors’ remuneration does not include the estimated monetary
value of a property owned by the Group and occupied by a director
of the Company. The estimated monetary value of the residential
accommodation provided to the director for the year ended 31 March,

2008 was HK$266,050.

No directors of the Company waived any emoluments in any of
the two years ended 31 March, 2009.

9. EMPLOYEES' EMOLUMENTS

Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments in the
Group, five (2008: four) were directors of the Company
whose emoluments are set out in the disclosure in note 8.
The emoluments of the remaining individual in 2008 are as

follows:

8. EEM<E (&)

Hiet - ()

(O BRIBMEEBRARRELIENITERBEE
WTEE A ZTTLEt+-A-ThAE

(d) BTEEEZERRRABIUIFNTES
HZERLF+ A"+ NBEEER -

() EEMEUTBE-—HEmAKEHEALHA
RA—RBEEEMZYEZBAERE -8
E_RRN\F=ZA=T—HLLFE REF
RAEE R et E#¥(E/5266,0508 7T ©

HE-FEAF=A=+—ALM
R - BmA R R EFREAM
B -

BEMS

EXREERLERRHALTH BH
—EENF:HEB) RARAE
- HMEe 2HFBEHNM T8 -
RZZEZENF - HBRA T 2B 0
T

Salaries and other benefits Fre REMEF - 1,900,200
Contributions to retirement RKB A EH 2K

benefits schemes - 55,800

- 1,956,000

Their emoluments were within the following bands:

BEZMEEENT :

2009 2008
—2TNF —TTN\F

Number of Number of
employees employees

BEAR EBE AR

HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000

1,500,001& L&
2,000,000 7T

K EIRI KA R
—ETAETR
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For the year ended 31 March, 2009
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9. EMPLOYEES' EMOLUMENTS (Continued)

No emoluments were paid by the Group to the directors of the
Company or the five highest paid individuals as an inducement
to join or upon joining the Group or as compensation for loss
of office in any of the two years ended 31 March, 2009.

10. TAXATION

9. EEM= (8

BE_TTNF=A=+t—HIM
BFEE  AEESEOARAES
FAERERSHALIMEMHE -
ERIMARSE SRR 2 RE) K
KREROL 2 FME -

10. Bi1IR

The taxation charge comprises: HMES HBE
Hong Kong Profits Tax BEENEH
Charge for the year AEE MBS 3,149,021 4,343,287
Overprovision in prior years FEHBREEREG (711,068) (715,835)
2,437,953 3,627,452
Overseas taxation YEINR TE
Charge for the year AEEZREL L 2,082,203 519,464
Underprovision in prior year TERENRE 1,782 =
2,083,985 519,464
Deferred tax credit (note 24) EIER B OB (Hf7£24)
Current year RNEE (1,711,241) (1,982,633)
Attributable to change in tax rate RSB H R (890,700) -
1,919,997 2,164,283

On 26 June, 2008, the Hong Kong Legislative Council passed
the Revenue Bill 2008 which reduced corporate profits tax rate
from 17.5% to 16.5% effective from the year of assessment
2008/2009. Therefore, Hong Kong Profits Tax is calculated at
16.5% (2008: 17.5%) of the estimated assessable profit for
the year. The effect of this decrease has been reflected in the
calculation of current and deferred tax balances as at and for
the year ended 31 March, 2009.

74 Chung Tai Printing Holdings Limited
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For the year ended 31 March, 2009
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10. TAXATION (Continued)

On 16 March, 2007, the PRC promulgated the Law of the PRC
on Enterprise Income Tax (the “New Law"”) by Order No. 63
of the President of the PRC. On 6 December, 2007, the State
Council of the PRC issued Implementation Regulations of the
New Law. Under the New Law and Implementation Regulations,
the Enterprise Income Tax rate of the Group’s subsidiaries in
the PRC, was reduced from 33% to 25% from 1 January, 2008

onwards.

The tax charge for the year can be reconciled to the (loss)
profit before taxation per the consolidated income statement
as follows:

10. %18 (&)

RZZEZELF=A1+758 ' BRI
FEAREMBFEIFEESHE
AP EARLMB O EGRE)
([#FFED - R+ F+ A
NE PR EMA R AE
&l - BEBEFHFERERIGEH - B
—EENFE—A—BE AEEZ
FRENBARZEEFMSHHEER
33% B E25% ©

P e T SR A M R 2 R BT
(E18) BHEEFHEST HIT

(Loss) profit before taxation ELRT (B18) %7 (16,015,609) 41,184,025
Tax at the income tax rate of 16.5%  IZFTS5HI=16.5%
(2008: 17.5%) (Z2ZENEFE 17.5%)
=& 7 FI18 (2,642,575) 7,207,205
Tax effect of expenses not NAIF S 2 RIS &
deductible for tax purposes 2,212,148 249,007
Tax effect of income not taxable for  HEZRHUA 2 TS 2
tax purposes (1,724,013) (4,631,511)
Tax effect of the tax losses RERRIEEE 2
not recognised M 4,965,868 141,995
Overprovision in respect of EFRERE
prior years (709,286) (715,835)
Effect of different tax rates of REMADERMELE 2
subsidiaries operating bt B A TR N E R =R
in other jurisdictions - 708,555 (86,578)
Effect of change in tax rate HEREE) 8 (890,700) =
Taxation for the year RNEFEFIE 1,919,997 2,164,283
hRENRISREFRAF
—TENEEH
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11. (LOSS) PROFIT FOR THE YEAR M. KEE (FE) &R

(Loss) profit for the year has been STERFE (BFHE) &
arrived at after charging (crediting): 2% (5t A) T5&IE :

Allowance for bad and doubtful debts RiZBEE:E

(included in other expenses and losses) (5T AEAhFI X K E518) 8,174,885 3,349,914
Reversal of allowance for bad debts % [o] 22 BR F2 (261,232) -
Auditor's remuneration =AM & 1,140,000 1,270,000
Cost of inventories recognised as an X HFEXER 2

expense, including write-down of FERA (BREMBRGTFEE

inventories of HK$5,684,000 5,684,000/ 7T

(2008: HK$170,000) —ZTZE)\&F : 170,0007%87T)) 567,992,902 603,784,375
Depreciation of property, plant and YE - BB MREITE

equipment 33,464,326 36,650,496
Gain on disposal of property, plant HEME  BEMREZ W

and equipment (53,422) (13,294,655)
Net foreign exchange losses SNEE SR F 58

(included in other expenses and losses) (5t A E#5% 2 E548) 31,875,985 4,100,581
Prepaid lease payments charged to SR EE il o

consolidated income statement TEfT b EFIE 88,610 88,610
Rental payments in respect of LiEHE

premises under operating leases 5,117,064 4,434,841
Staff costs including directors’ BREEEME 2 EIKAKA

emoluments

— Salaries, wages and other benefits —#Fe  ITENHMER 127,722,299 137,470,614

— Contributions to retirement — RRAE T B R

benefits schemes 859,833 993,805
Total staff costs 488 T A 128,582,132 138,464,419

Gain on fair value change of held for RIEHEFSFKRERAFE
trading investment FE TS - (154,440)
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BE-SEAF=A=1—AILFE

12. DIVIDENDS RECOGNISED AS DISTRIBUTIONS
DURING THE YEAR

1N.EXFEERAEIRZKRE

Interim dividend, BT AR R
paid — HK$0.03 cents per share — FIRAE#0.031L
(2008: HK$0.091 cents) —EENF
AE#0.09111) 3,058,064 9,303,764
2008 Final dividend paid ENZZEZNFRARKRE
— HK$0.091 cents per share — B AE0.0911U 9,303,764 =
2007 Final dividend paid ENZZTFRABKE
— HK$2.8 cents per share — SREE2 81l - 9,303,764
12,361,828 18,607,528

The directors of the Company do not recommend the payment
of a final dividend for the year ended 31 March, 2009.

13. (LOSS) EARNINGS PER SHARE

The calculation of the basic and diluted (loss) earnings per share
attributable to the ordinary equity holders of the Company for
the year is based on the following data:

ARREZTEZRNBE-ZTZT
NE=ZA=1T—RHIEFEZRHAK

B o
o

13. 8K (Bi8) BF

REEARREBBRATE ARIA
BREANRLEE (BE) 8N IHE

A T8I HE

(Loss) earnings for the purposes of STEERERN (58)

basic (loss) earnings per share BNz (BE) B
Effect of dilutive potential BEEHBELTBER 2 ZE

ordinary shares

— interest on convertible notes — RRER =

(Loss) earnings for the purposes of StE SRS (B18)
diluted (loss) earnings per share &z (BE) B

(17,935,606) 39,019,742
N/A REH 3,800,000
N/A FEH 42,819,742

fhKEDRIEE AR A F
—ETHEFR



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

= by S S

For the year ended 31 March, 2009
BEZ _FEENFZH=1—HIFE

13. (LOSS) EARNINGS PER SHARE (Continued)

Number of shares

13. 8K (B#E) &7 (&)

Weighted average number of
shares for the purpose of
basic (loss) earnings per share

Effect of dilutive potential
ordinary shares:
Convertible notes

Weighed average number of
shares for the purpose of
diluted (loss) earnings per share

AEERER (BR)
BNz B A7 R S 15 24

R ERR S
TRBERE

TEEREE (B8)
Bz B An A 15 21

Pursuant to the special general meeting held on 23 October,
2007, each of the then issued and unissued shares of HK$0.10
each in the share capital of the Company is subdivided into
twenty shares of HK$0.005 each in the share capital of the
Company with effect from 24 October, 2007. Accordingly, the
weighted average number of ordinary shares for the purpose
of earnings per share has been adjusted for the year ended 31

March, 2008.

Chung Tai Printing Holdings Limited
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14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Construction
in progress
HEIR
HKS

BT

Leasehold
land and

buildings
ke
¢ &2
HKS

B

Leasehold
improvements
RONERE
HKS

B

14.9% - BMERRE

Furniture,
fixtures
and office
equipment Machinery
B %8 and Motor
RBAE  equipment vehicles
7 KERRR RE
HK$ HK$ HK$
BT BT BT

CosT AR

At 1 April, 2007 RZZ5+EMA-A - 110863886 42,288,098  29,010332 440,779,063 10,058,848 633,000,227
Exchange adjustments i35 = 4,527,184 83,547 3,010,540 2,858,372 117,162 10,596,805
Additions FE 4,839,338 400,000 820,000 932,586 11,683,807 119,812 18,795,543
Disposal k= - (4704,685) = = = - (4,704,685)
At 31 March, 2008 WoEE/\ESRE=+-0 4839338  111,086385 43,191,645 32953458 455321242 10,295822 657,687,890
Exchange adjustments EiA% 53,011 683,554 15,679 478,724 517,344 16,248 1,764,560
Additions RE 2,497.133 1,342,721 = 377,885 4,127,903 935,746 9,281,388
Disposal il - - - - (3,730,000 (9.626)  (3,739,626)
At 31 March, 2009 RZZEAEZR=+-0 7380482 113,112,660 43207324 33810067 456236489 11,238,190 664,994,212
DEPRECIATION e

At 1 April, 2007 R-EE+ENE-H - 2636670 34775299 26,195,511 285,501,562 9,120,744 381,919,786
Exchange adjustments EREE = 818,981 50,998 2,169,309 2,078,617 93,281 5,211,186
Provided for the year Eiiis = 3,149,067 658,583 3387546 29,280,504 174,796 36,650,496
Eliminated on disposal HERE - (1,478,840) - - - - (1,478,840)
At 31 March, 2008 RZZZ\F=F=1-H - 28815878 35484880 31,752,366 316,860,683 9,388,821 422,302,628
Exchange adjustments B % = 122,740 10,833 354328 319,811 13,626 821,338
Provided for the year s - 3,280,463 461375 737943 28,599,867 384678 33464326
Eliminated on disposal HEMH - - - - (3,730,000) (96260  (3,739,626)
At 31 March, 2009 R-EENEZR=1-H - 32219081 35957,088 32,844,637 342,050,361 9,777,499 452,848,666
CARRYING VALUES FHE

At 31 March, 2009 R-EZAEZF=+-R 738948 80,893,579 7,250,236 965430 114,186,128 1,460,691 212,145,546
At 31 March, 2008 R-ZZNEZR=1-B 4839338 82,270,507 7,706,765 1201,000 138460559 907,001 235,385,262

The above items of property, plant and equipment are
depreciated on a straight-line basis at the following rates per

annum:

Leasehold land and Over the shorter of the lease
buildings terms or 30-50 years

Leasehold improvements 20%

Furniture, fixtures and 10% — 25%

office equipment
Machinery and equipment 10% — 25%
Motor vehicles 25%

EAWE  BERKEEE ZTE
DB T 2 FHERWIRERE

S| .
RELE

AL REF RHELER
30&504F (KA
BREALE)

HAOMEEE 20%

BEEHENR  10% —25%

RNEE L
e 2S K 3%t 10% — 25%
RE 25%

PAEBREARAE -
—ETAETR
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14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
(Continued)

15.

Chung Tai Printing Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2009

14.9% - MERRE (&)

The carrying values of leasehold
land and buildings shown

above comprise:

Leasehold land and buildings in

Hong Kong under

FREH L REF 2
FREESRE

I E I AT B LY
BEZLHNET

medium-term leases 32,846,222 32,528,370
Buildings in other regions in A= RET = A
the PRC under RHAIFRA A 2 EF
medium-term leases 48,047,356 49,742,137
80,893,578 82,270,507

Property, plant and equipment with an aggregate carrying
value of HK$32,846,222 (2008: HK$32,528,370) have been
pledged to banks to secure general banking facilities granted

to the Group.

PREPAID LEASE PAYMENTS

BREHE H & 332,846,222/ T 2 ¥
¥ BEMRB(ZZEZENE:
32,528,370 L) B TIRTT © 1E
ABASEEERE-RIRTHE K
;:Eﬁ o

15. A LB EFE

The Group’s prepaid lease

payments comprise:

Medium-term leasehold land

AEBEZBNLHWHEE
RIBEIE

{32 7 AR B 37 DA R HR AR 49

in the PRC Bazti 3,251,515 3,340,125

Analysed for reporting purposes as: B o T :
Non-current asset IERBEE 3,162,905 3,251,515
Current asset TRENEE 88,610 88,610
3,251,515 3,340,125

The leasehold land is charged to consolidated income statement
on a straight-line basis over the remaining term of the leases.

A L35I8 B AR EER R E L
R BHRARER MR -
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16. INVESTMENT IN AN ASSOCIATE

16. R—EBENT 2 RE

Cost of investment in an associate

R—EEE R B 2 R EKA

Unlisted JEET 18,629,400 —
Share of post-acquisition losses BRI EE 12 18 (904,686) =
17,724,714 =

As at 31 March, 2009, the Group had interest in the following
associate:

NRZBEAE=A=+—8 ' K&
BERATHE AR P EAER

Proportion of
nominal value

Form of Principal
business Place of place of Class of
Name of entity structure incorporation operation  share held
ERZR ABERKE ZERAUBY EEEXNE FRGER
EMNSEEEEE Incorporated  The PRC The PRC Ordinary
BRAR iz AV i i L@
(THMNBE])

The financial year end date for H#KJ1L88% is 31 December. For
the purpose of applying the equity method of accounting, the
consolidated financial statements of M JL8HZ& for the year
ended 31 March, 2009 have been prepared by the directors of
the Company. The sub-group headed by HE#/158%& has not
yet commenced business.

of issued
capital/
registered
capital held
by the Group  Proportion of
AEB S voting
BRTRA,/  power held
AR A FiRER  Principal activity
HELA Bhl  FEEHR
30% 30%  Investment
holding
REER

HEMNEEZYBREEFER AT
“A=+—H- AXBERE:
AR EECHREEMNEE
BE_ZThAE=A=1t—HIL&E
BZEAMBHmE - WEAKNLESR
BEZTFEERARBERS -

K EIRI KA R
—ETAETR
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16. INVESTMENT IN AN ASSOCIATE (Continued) 16. A —EHEQNTRZ2RE (&)
The summarised financial information in respect of the Group’s BENEBRR S NG ZHEER L
associate is set out below: BHEYWT

Total assets BERE 59,941,031 =
Total liabilities afEaE (858,651) =
Net assets BEFE 59,082,380 =
Group's share of net assets of REBE(RBENTZ

an associate BEFE 17,724,714 =
Revenue Wz - -
Loss since acquisition date of BN B B W8 B H 2 518

the associate (3,015,620) -

Group's share of loss of an associate ~ FRAEEELEBL AT Z
for the year BB (904,686) -

Chung Tai Printing Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2009
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For the year ended 31 March, 2009
BE_TENF=H="+—HIFEF

17. INVENTORIES 17.7E

Raw materials JRH1# 43,692,829 71,942,116
Work in progress ER 5 13,862,276 14,833,393
Finished goods BUAY @ 14,469,985 24,752,209
72,025,090 111,527,718
18. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 18. B 5 R H it FE WK1
The Group's credit terms on sales are generally with a range from NEFEBEEZEEHRE—K A60E
60 to 90 days. A longer period is granted to a few customers 90H - PEHEAEBEERIFE XM
with whom the Group has a good business relationship and BErzZBE (BRI RIFE) if =
which are in sound financial condition. An ageing analysis of EREZEZEEHRE - B S EIRZIA
the trade receivables is as follows: 2B ST

0 - 30 days 0&30HN 74,967,209 73,272,178
31 - 60 days 31260HIA 8,192,000 25,239,767
61 — 90 days 61E290HIN 5,805,791 32,416,368
Over 90 days B3890 H 3,197,041 38,628,345
92,162,041 169,556,658
Deposits, prepayments and Z& - BERER
other receivables H fth pE U Fh18 3,780,751 50,425,476
95,942,792 219,982,134
Trade receivables of approximately HK$19,882,000 (2008: B #4919,882,0008 0 (ZEEN
HK$33,232,000) was denominated in USD, the currencies other % 1 33,232,00087T) 2B SR
than the functional currency of the respective group entities. KIBLAEITL BB - mETIIEE

MIEEERZERAEY -

K EIRI KA R
—ETAETR
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For the year ended 31 March, 2009
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18. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (Continued)

As at 31 March, 2008, deposits,
receivables included a deposit of approximately HK$45.5 million % FANE
placed with a securities house. The amount was unsecured,
repayable on demand and bore interest at 2% per annum.

Before accepting any new customer, the Group assesses the
potential customer’s credit quality and defines credit limits by
customer. Credit limits attributable to customers are reviewed

regularly.

The Group has policy for allowance of bad and doubtful debts
which is based on the evaluation of collectibility and age
analysis of accounts and on management'’s judgement including
the credit creditworthiness and the past collection history of

each client.

Included in the Group’s trade debtors balance are debtors with
aggregate carrying amount of approximately HK$3,197,000

prepayments and other

1. EZ R HMEIWFIE (&

R_ZFENF=ZA=+—8"
E&ﬁ@ﬁ%mﬁ$
BRE—Z2GHR—HEEFTAEY
45,500,000 T 2 %% ° Z%@%ﬁ
AEIRIE  BRBNEEBREFER
K2%ET B °

AEBGEEREMHELA - &5
AHEBEREFP ZEEE R MRER
EFHEEEERSE  UEHRITHR
TEPZIEEREE -

RSB B R R B A B BUR
ZEABRRIERE 2 WEREE &

%QMM&EEFZﬂ%(@%
#%%ﬁZG%$ﬁ& EENRRT
%) MHIE °

AEEZESERFEF - BIER
FE{E42%8493,197,0008 T (—Z2F

(2008: HK$38,628,000), which are past due at the reporting A\ 38,628,000/8 7T) 2 FEUW X
date for which the Group has not provided for impairment loss T o :ZEFEWFENIRE HEIE @
as there has not been a significant change in credit quality H - EAEE T EIERBERSE -
of the trade receivable and the amounts are still considered FERREMESEKZIEBEZZES
recoverable. The Group does not hold any collateral over these =EWEmEAES) - BABERIBEINH

balances. The average age of these receivables is 135 days

(2008: 180 days).

Ageing of trade receivables which are past due but not
impaired.

BRATWE - REBWERZER
HEFAEEMER -  ZERWHRIEZ
FHERER AB135H (ZEENEFE .
180H) °

ERREEREIEZREKNEAELZ
R

91 to 180 days 91£180HIA 3,197,041 30,652,738
181 to 365 days 181E365HA - 5,135,274
Over 365 days H3B365H - 2,840,333
Total 4a=t 3,197,041 38,628,345

Chung Tai Printing Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2009
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18.

19.

TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (Continued)

Movement in the allowance for doubtful debts:

18.

EZRHEMEWRRE (5)
REBE 22D :

Balance at beginning of the year F) sk 7,506,176 4,457,531
Impairment losses recognised on FE W IR HERR

receivables IEEE 8,174,885 3,349,914
Reversal of bad debt AR D) (261,232) =
Amounts written off as uncollectible gl Bl 2 iR 58 (3,455,086) (317,751)
Exchange realignment RS 1,598 16,482
Balance at end of the year FREER 11,966,341 7,506,176

Included in the allowance for doubtful debts are individually
impaired trade receivables which have been in severe financial
difficulties in repaying the outstanding balances. The Group
does not hold any collateral over these balances.

In determining the recoverability of a trade receivable, the
Group considers any change in the credit quality of the trade
receivable from the date credit was initially granted up to the
report date. The trade receivables past due but not provided for
were either subsequently settled as at the date of this report or
no historical default of payments was noted by the respective
customers. The concentration of credit risk is limited due to the
customer base being large and unrelated. The directors believe
that there is no further credit provision required in excess of
the allowance for doubtful debts.

AMOUNT DUE FROM A RELATED COMPANY

The amount is unsecured, interest free and is repayable on
demand. Dr. Suek Chai Kit, Christopher, director of the
Company, is one of the ultimate beneficial owners and directors
of the related company. Mr. Suek Chai Hong is one of the
directors of this related company during the year.

The maximum outstanding balance for the year is HK$1,362,753
(2008: HK$198,845).

19.

AEBRBHEEERRNERERGERA
BREMER 2 ERREER SR
HIH > ARESERAZFRARFE
EfAI A -

EETEZRUFBERLT A KE
B AEEERHTERLOERES
FEEREBHHNE  AFRAESE
WHRIBEZ EEERRE HREME
B CAREEREZIE S RUGK
BIEEERRAREBEHEBE -
IEREFPARTUEARLE - B
REPHBRAREFPZHEAETH
B BEERRZETIEEAR -
EERRERABZRERE 2L
BABELEIMEERE -

FEW — BRI 2 B 2 ;IR

ZETHERAERAR  RENBRE
MEE ARABESEHAGBLAR
HZEAERR L RREDEEARE
FZ2— FRBEERERZEE
RAER—REE -

FA - &RmEREGEEAE1,362,753
B (Z T ZF )\ F 198,845
JT) °

K EIR KA R
—ETAETR
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20. SHORT-TERM BANK DEPOSITS/CASH AND

21.

CASH EQUIVALENT

Short term bank deposits, bank balances and cash comprise
cash held by the Group and bank deposits with an original
maturity of three months or less. Bank balances and short-
term bank deposits of approximately HK$179,933,000 (2008:
HK$142,935,000) and HK$75,094,000 (2008: nil) were
denominated in USD and AUD respectively, the currencies other
than the functional currency of the respective group entities.

Further, included in the short term bank deposits, bank balances
and cash are amounts denominated in RMB of approximately
HK$50,196,000 (2008: HK$41,325,000), which are not freely
convertible into other currencies.

The bank balances and short-term bank deposits carry interest
rates with a range from 1.0% to 4.5% (2008: 2.5% to 6%)
per annum.

TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

An ageing analysis of the trade payables at the balance sheet
date is as follows:

20. BHRTER RERRS

21.

B

RMERTER  BITEHBEREE
BAKBEMFRSAFHAE=EA
KA T ZIRITER BE D HIH
179,933,000 L (ZZE & )\ F :
142,935,0007% 7t) &75,094,000
BIL(ZEENGF : F) 2RITHE
B EEHRITER D RIAET KB
TLRBA - MELIEEREEEE
ZEAE -

AN - EERRITER  RITEHRK
& B EMEE R 450,196,000 7T
—ET)\F : 41,325,00087T) 2
ARERIE  ZEFETTEARRL
MEEMER -

BITERLEHETERZFEER
NF1.0%E45% (Z BT )\ F:
25%FE6%) & o

BZ RHEMEMNRE

B RNFRERNEE B ZREDHT
LN

0 — 30 days 0% 30H 28,590,389 58,798,037
31 - 60 days 31£260H 665,231 9,817,372
61 — 90 days 61%290H 929,215 916,303
Over 90 days HBiE90H 862,889 1,480,102

31,047,724 71,011,814
Accrued expenses and other payables JE{tE B & H fib fFE~ 208 16,295,392 20,149,716

47,343,116 91,161,530

The average credit period on purchase of goods is 90 days. The
Group has financial risk management policies in place to ensure
that all payables within the credit timeframe.

Chung Tai Printing Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2009
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21

22.

23.

. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES (Continued)

Trade payables of approximately HK$19,621,000 (2008:
HK$59,891,000) and HK$403,000 (2008: HK$569,000) were
denominated in RMB and Japanese Yen respectively, the
currencies other than the functional currency of the respective
group entities.

BANK BORROWINGS

The bank borrowings are unsecured bank import loans which
are repayable within one year from the balance sheet date and
carry fixed interest rate with a range from 3% to 3.5% (2008:
4% to 4.5%) per annum.

All the bank borrowings were denominated in USD, the currency
other than the functional currency of the respective group
entities.

CONVERTIBLE NOTES

Pursuant to a placing agreement entered into between the
Company and Kingston Securities Limited dated 24 August,
2007, the Company issued convertible notes amounting to
HK$140,000,000 at par on 9 November, 2007. The convertible
notes were denominated in HK$. The convertible notes entitled
the holders to convert them into ordinary shares of the Company
at any time between the date of issue of the convertible notes
and their settlement date on 8 November, 2009 at an initial
conversion price of HK$1.15 per convertible note, which was
subsequently adjusted to HK$0.0575 per convertible note
resulting from the share subdivision in October 2007. If the
convertible notes had not been converted, they would be
redeemed on 8 November, 2009 at par. The Company can
redeem all outstanding convertible notes at any time after the
expiry of six months from the date of issue of the convertible
notes together with interest accrued to the date fixed for
redemption. Interest of 1% would be paid at maturity in
arrears.

21.

22.

23.

BEZNREMENRIER (&

ﬁ%%ﬁmmwmpm%ﬁt:
£ £ )\ £ :59,891,000/ 7T) &
403,000 T (=Z T T N\ F:
569,00087C) 2 B S I FIAD Al
UIARBLBERBEN  WMEHIE
R SEEER EREK -

BITEE
RITEEAERBETADERK
/,\E/\/iljtl::—c/t Eltﬁl» EW E\E .)tl:_
FERNF3I%E3IES% (ZFTE )\
FA%FEA5%) T o

PIBERITIEEHUETREN
EnYFEMNEEERZEMAE
f:ggo

R RE

@ﬁ$ AESFEELEFRA
RZEZTLtFNAZ +@EJ¢Z
M%%N’K AR+ F1
—ANBBEETIUREEE  BEA
140,000,000/ 7T ° A #2 J 3= 15 BA
BT AR fou%&mﬁ%ﬁAﬁ
BRI EEETARELEER
B (ZEZENF+— ﬁﬂa)%ﬁ
WERER - B0 2 LIRESHA]
BREHEI1ISE T (HER_EZF
+tF+ABETZROIREMARES
B RZEHE0.05758T) &l
BMERERELBAARARR L BRRK
e REXABZ AT BRBREEEN =
ZENF+—A/\BEAEEBETUE
B o KRFHER AR RIEZETH
HAREET 7S A JE i & a5 & ]
@i&$%% O HEE B ER 2 A
BELNZHHARLBRZABREKRE
! iﬁﬂ_ REI BB S A o

K EIRI KA R ]
—“ETAETR



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

= by S S
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23. CONVERTIBLE NOTES (Continued) 23. TR EE (&)

The convertible notes contained three components, embedded
derivative for early redemption right by the Company, liability
and equity elements. The equity element was presented in
equity under the heading of convertible notes equity reserve.
The effective interest rate of the liability component was 8%
at the date of initial recognition.

The movement of the liability component of the convertible
notes for the year is set out below:

ABRREEeE =@ 0 25
ARAREEREERE ZAEITE
TH - BEREDRHD - #EHWO
REm N2 BRRREER R —
HES - RYIFHERBEH - BER
N2 BRME 8%

AREEMBEBEEERDE
wmR

HK$

BT

Liability component at the issue date TRz BES D 119,190,000
Interest charge (note 7) FEFRZ (BiE7) 3,800,000
Liability at 31 March, 2008 RZZBEZNF=A=1T—RHZAE 122,990,000
Interest charge (note 7) FEFRZ (A7) 8,278,551
Early repayment RATER (131,268,551)
Liability at 31 March, 2009 R-_BEEZNF=ZA=+—RH2Z&& =
In December 2008, the Company exercised its early redemption RZEENFE+ZAR A2 A
option to redeem all convertible notes for an amount for an TEEREDEUNELDR &
amount of HK$132,720,000 and a loss on redemption of 132,720,000 v 2 FT & 1] #
approximately HK$1,451,000 was recognised in the consolidated REHR BEROAELAZEBED
income statement directly. 1,451,000 TE EE NG E W

88 Chung Tai Printing Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2009
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24. DEFERRED TAXATION 24 R FEBLIE
The followings are the major deferred tax liability (asset) UTERRERBTFERRZE
recognised and movements thereon during the current and DREVKEE (BE) k&
prior years:

Accelerated
tax
depreciation Tax losses

hORBLH I BBEE
HK$ HK$
BT BT

At 1 April, 2007 R-ZZEZ+FMHA—H 18,100,353 (684,130) 17,416,223
(Credit) charge to consolidated (B A) MK EAREE
income statement for the year — #&Z& Uiz (2,130,193) 147,560 (1,982,633)
At 31 March, 2008 RZEENF
=A=+—8H 15,970,160 (536,570) 15,433,590
(Credit) charge to consolidated (8 A) Hfp B AEE
income statement for the year melisR (1,785,857) 74,616 (1,711,241)
Effect of change in tax rate MERFE 2B (917,848) 27,148 (890,700)
At 31 March, 2009 RZZTNF
=H=+—H 13,266,455 (434,806) 12,831,649
At the balance sheet date, the Group has estimated unused tax MNEEH - NE B ] 4 H85 K K
losses of approximately HK$40,826,000 (2008: HK$11,161,000) M2 B AR EEE L
available to offset against future profits. A deferred tax asset 40,826,000 L (Z T )\ F:
has been recognised in respect of approximately HK$2,635,000 11,161,000/ 7T) - NEE 5t A
(2008: HK$3,066,000) of the tax losses. No deferred tax #J2,635,0008 L (ZE T )\ F :
asset has been recognised in respect of the remaining tax 3,066,000/% JT) < %% B 1 1 R
losses of HK$38,191,000 (2008: HK$8,095,000) due to the BEEFR TS EE o AR EEATERIR 2R
unpredictability of future profit streams. Such losses may be wmARE NI BEREERTEE
carried forward indefinitely. 838,191,000 7t (ZZEZ N\ F -

8,095,000/ 70) MARELEHR B E
E o ZEEENER L -

K EIRI KA R
—ETAETR
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25. SHARE CAPITAL OF THE COMPANY 25. KA TR A

Par value
of each
ordinary share Number of
BREERZ shares  Share capital

HfE RE L
HK$
BT

Ordinary shares =R El)e
Authorised: RTE
At 1 April, 2007 “EELFPMA—H 0.10 500,000,000 50,000,000
Increase of authorised EINEERA (fiita)
share capital (Note a) 0.10 4,500,000,000 450,000,000
Share subdivision (Note b) AT 4R (Hztb) 95,000,000,000 -
At 31 March, 2008 and RZZZNF=H
31 March, 2009 =+t-HBRE-_ZTThEF
=A=+—H 0.005 100,000,000,000 500,000,000
Issued and fully paid BEITREE
At 1 April, 2007 “EZLFPA—H 0.10 332,277,280 33,227,728
Issue of shares through top-up FERLERNRE
subscription (Note c) BIIRM, (Hitc) 0.10 66,400,000 6,640,000
Share subdivision (Note b) B4 48 (H72b) 7,574,868,320 =
Issue of shares through FERREEITRG
placement (Note d) (Hfizd) 2,220,000,000 11,100,000
At 31 March, 2008 and RZZTENFE=A
31 March, 2009 =+-HE=ZTZThF
=A=+—H 0.005 10,193,545,600 50,967,728

Notes: Hiat -

(a)  Pursuant to the special general meeting held on 24 September, 2007, it was (@ BER-_ZZ+EhLA-t+HmBARTY
resolved that the authorised share capital of the Company was increased BEERAE  BAAAREERAMH
from HK$50,000,000 divided into 500,000,000 shares of par value of 50,000,0005 7T (9 A500,000,0004% & A% &
HK$0.10 each, to HK$500,000,000 divided into 5,000,000,000 shares of {B0.105# 7T 2 B& 17 ) 1 A1 Z500,000,0005% 7T
par value of HK$0.10 each, to provide flexibility and facilitate the Company (% /5,000,000,0000% &F A% EI{E0.105% T 2
in its future expansion. &) - FEREEEERRERNRARKREKZ

(b)  Pursuant to the special general meeting held on 23 October, 2007, it was by WHBER-_ZELE+A-FT=BRITZERE
resolved that each of the existing issued and unissued shares of HK$0.10 HRIKE AN ARRASRSAREMEO.10
each in the share capital of the Company was subdivided into twenty shares BT B BITRARBITROFAESD
of HK$0.005 each in the share capital of the Company. AR A — + IR IR EEO0.0058 T2 A& ©

Chung Tai Printing Holdings Limited
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For the year ended 31 March, 2009

BE—F
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25. SHARE CAPITAL OF THE COMPANY

26.

(Co

Notes:

(o)

ntinued)
' (Continued)

On 24 August, 2007, CNA Company Limited (“CNA”), a substantial
shareholder of the Company, a placing agent and the Company entered
into a placing agreement (“Top-Up Placing Agreement”). Pursuant to the
Top-Up Placing Agreement, CNA agreed to place, through the placing
agent, an aggregate of 66,400,000 existing shares, on a fully underwritten
basis, to independent third parties at a placing price of HK$0.9 per placing
share and CNA agreed to subscribe for an aggregate of 66,400,000 new
ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each of the Company at HK$0.9 per share.

The new shares were issued under the general mandate granted to the
directors at the annual general meeting of the Company held on 27 August,
2007. Pursuant to the placing agreement, 2,220,000,000 shares of the
Company were placed through a placing agent at a price of HK$0.045 per
share. The placement was completed in November 2007.

All the shares issued during the year ended 31 March, 2008

rank

pari passu with the then existing shares in all respects.

LEASE COMMITMENTS

At the balance sheet date, the Group had commitments

for f

uture minimum lease payments under non-cancellable

operating leases in respect of premises which fall due as
follows:

25. RN FIRA (47)

Biet - (&)

() RIZEZLENA-FWAH:  XRFEEBH
FCNA Company Limited ([CNAL) - B2 &
REBARNRAFIVRE W ([CERNEE
WaEl) - REBAERFTRE HHE - CNARE
FRRERE  UEHBHEEERREES
REERKB0IBIT MBLE=-HEEA
$£66,400,0000% 3R B k5 + MCNAKE (&R
B IR § 80.975 7T R B8 & £66,400,000/% 7
A EFREEO. 10/ 7T 2 3 L@ -

(d FEROBER-_ZFZLFNA-TELHRET
ZBRRBEFARGERTES 2 —RIRER
17 o BRI E W38 - AR BEBEE IR
& [%0.045% JT At 2,220,000,000i& AN A 7]
Befn - BEER—_ZTBLF+—AxK e

FMEREBE_SEN\F=ZA=1+—

BUEFERETZEONETHEE
REFZBNZEBREHAL -

26. HE H&IE

REER » AEEREFTZ A
HEEHE RN Z RRKERER
TRAGER AT B E W -

Within one year —F AN 4,072,240 5,570,466
In the second to fifth year inclusive F_EEFRTFN

(BHEEEMF) 9,126,865 8,024,949

Over five years BiBERF 53,302,389 47,188,918

66,501,494 60,784,333

Oper
Grou

ating lease payments represent rentals payable by the
p for factory premises and staff quarters in the PRC. Leases

for factory premises and staff quarters are negotiated for terms
of 5 to 10 years. Rentals are fixed for 5 to 10 years.

EHERIBEANEE RN EH
ZIMMENEIBEESREMNZA
T IMWENEIBEES2HER
BSEN0ETE - Z5E10F 22
& e & o

K EIRI KA R
—“ETAETR
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27.

28.

CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

27. EARRIE

Capital expenditure contracted for
but not provided for in the
consolidated financial statements in
respect of acquisition of property,
plant and equipment

B YE - BELREND
FIAVMERTESR & M SRR+
REEBZEARFX

46,440,902 8,219,043

RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEMES

The Group operates a defined contribution retirement benefits
scheme (“ORSO Scheme”) for certain qualifying employees
in Hong Kong. The assets of the ORSO Scheme are held
separately from those of the Group in funds under the control
of the trustee. Contributions to the ORSO Scheme are at rates
specified in the rules of the ORSO Scheme. Where there are
employees who leave the ORSO Scheme prior to vesting in full
in the contributions, the contributions payable by the Group are
reduced by the amount of forfeited contributions.

With effect from 1 December, 2000, the Group has also joined
a mandatory provident fund scheme (“MPF Scheme”) for its
employees in Hong Kong. The MPF Scheme is registered with
the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme Authority under the
Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme Ordinance. The assets of
the MPF Scheme are held separately from those of the Group in
funds under the control of an independent trustee. Under the
MPF Scheme, the employer and its employees are each required
to make contributions to the MPF Scheme at rates specified
in the rules. The only obligation of the Group with respect to
the MPF Scheme is to make the required contributions. Except
for voluntary contribution, no forfeited contribution under the
MPF Scheme is available to reduce the contribution payable in
future years.

The retirement benefits schemes contributions arising from the
ORSO Scheme and the MPF Scheme charged to the consolidated
income statement represent contributions payable to the funds
by the Group at rates specified in the rules of the schemes.

Chung Tai Printing Holdings Limited
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28. BIKRERIETE

AEBAEBTBZETEEREESE
17 E M FR KB FIET &) ([ORSO
st 2l]) - ORSOFt Bl 2 B EHE 5T
AEHzEESHE  BAEECZE
EDFEE - ORSOst &l Z & T3
ORSOsH &l Z R B FTRTBA 2 tE &
TE o fHiEB R A 2 HEVS AT
R HORSOFTE] - A&EEEEL 2
PR A] B Mz R > o

B_TTTET_A-A A%
EINE A E SRS S MBHIED
Heitel (BESHE]) - Bl
SHBIS IR U8 30 B L T8 2 1B
RS AESH BT R B -
SRS 82 & E B AR
HzEeHH  RAREZEED
HAEE - RERESHE - EXR
H R E B AR ATA 2 L% MR
S HBIF K  ARER B
S8 T2 — R AELRTIE
2 B o B BB RS - BARAE
TS 5B 2R U 3T PR LA
DA 2 63K o

R & U et & A 1 BR Z ORSORT &l
KogiEa g st &N 2R IRE M A8 1
Ko TR A B Z SR EIRANET
Rz RERESER 2 H#HR -
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28. RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEMES

(Continued)

For the retirement benefits of the Group’s qualifying employees
in the PRC, the Group has participated in the retirement
benefits scheme operated by the local municipal government
of Shenzhen. The Group is required to contribute a certain
percentage of their payroll costs to the scheme to fund the
benefits. The only obligation of the Group with respect to the
scheme is to pay the ongoing required contributions under
the scheme. Contributions to the scheme are charged to the
consolidated income statement as they become payable in
accordance with the rules of the schemes.

At 31 March, 2009 and 2008, there were no significant
forfeited contributions which arose upon employees leaving the
schemes before they are fully vested in the contributions and
which are available to reduce the contributions payable by the
Group in the future.

28.

RABRAEE (B

ERAEEETEZAERERZ
BAKENAE  AREE2MER
Y3 75 T BT E IR 2 R KR A A
g - AEEALBHEEFHFM X
— B LR EIER - ASBAE
FRHEES - AKRERNZEIZHE
—BEERFEFELFTEIREFLZ
K - A& EEL 2 HARERIE
ZAt B Z BRI REFSERE N
&R R ©

RZZBEZNR_ZTEZENF=ZRA=+
— B EREENREHEEHEK
AR HZ T 8Im g Uk - 3R] A
BMOREE 2 RREHERZERN

RPN

K EIRI KA R
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29. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 29. AEANETRS
(a) Apart from the amount due from a related company as (@) BRBETRE19FTHR 55 & Uk — 1 i 228
disclosed in note 19, during the year, the Group has NAZRIBIN - FARNEEFEHE
entered into significant transactions with related parties ETHEAEATETZEHEAR
as follows: 2

Sales of goods to a related company [A—REEE QAT HES R
(Note i) (Kiazi) 356,072 295,605

Premises rental expenses (Note /i) YIERESR (BEi) 840,000 840,000

Notes: Bt -

(i) Dr. Suek Chai Kit, Christopher, a director of the Company, is one of (i) AATIZEERERIBLTAZEENT
the ultimate beneficial owners and directors of the related company. VR EBXBEAREE Y — o &R
Mr. Suek Chai Hong, a director of the Company, is one of the AAFEEREESRL BZEAT
directors of the related company during the year. Hh—ZESE -

(i) The transaction was carried out with a related company, a company (i) ZEXSHE—EEEAR (—BH
beneficially owned by the spouse and sons of Dr. Suek Chai Kit, Rt O RERS TEXEE Y
Christopher. AR)) #AT ©

(b) Compensation of key management personnel (b) EEEEAE 2 B

The remuneration of directors and other members of key LTAEENEMFESIE A

management during the year was as follows: ENAREE S :

2008
—ET)N\F

HK$
AT

Short-term benefits S HEAE A 7,927,120 7,488,031
Post-employment benefits 2EREAR 138,808 271,400

8,065,928 7,759,431
The remuneration of directors and key executives is EENTETHRAEZEE T
determined by the remuneration committee having regard HEMEZE2IREMALTZE
to the performance of individuals and market trends. HETISEBRAETE -

Chung Tai Printing Holdings Limited
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30. CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT 30. 54X ARER

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in the
Group will be able to continue as a going concern while
maximising the return to shareholders through the optimisation
of the debt and equity balance.

The capital structure of the Group consists of debt, which
includes bank borrowings and convertible notes disclosed in
notes 22 and 23, net of cash and cash equivalents and equity
attributable to equity holders of the Company, comprising
issued capital and reserves.

The management of the Group reviews the capital structure on
a continuous basis taking into account the cost of capital and
the risk associated with the capital. The Group will balance its
overall capital structure through new share issues, repurchase
of shares and the issue of new debt or the redemption of the

ANEE TR H SR AR A S B E
TEERERELE  FAREBHE
BEIR

FRENBEREDSER
= AR @

AEEZEARBEHAG (BIEH
22 R 23 BE 2 SRITIEE KA
BRE NERReEREFE) &
ARREDRFAARGEZR (B
ERITEARFERE) AKX o

AEBZEEBRHERNEARRE
B ZEZEHBREAKNANE
RPTE Mz B o 7N 52 A5 55 4 B
TR - BB At K Fr iR B IR SR
EERAERFEHEEREARRE

existing debt.

REE 2 EERIKE EFEAR -

The Group's overall strategy remains unchanged from prior
year.

31. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES 31.MBAT 2 21E

Effective
percentage of
issued share
capital/registered
capital held
by the Company
NG
BERITRE
AMERERT DL
2009 2008
“EENF ZTENF

Paid up
issued/
registered
share capital
BREBRT
ot fi AR 2K

Place of
incorporation/
registration

B/ i B

Principal activities

TEXRE

Name of subsidiary

o) PR

Chung Tai Management Limited Hong Kong HK$100 ordinary 100 100 Inactive
HRERERAA B HK$2 deferred TEEK
non-voting
10078 7T & &%
28T
EBREZEELR
Chung Tai Printing (B.V.I.) Limited British Virgin HK$10,000 100 100 Investment holding
Islands (“BVI") 10,0008 7T & B
KBRS

K EIRI KA R
—ETAETR
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31. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 31.fiB AT 2318 (&)

Effective
percentage of
issued share
Paid up capital/registered
issued/ capital held
Place of registered by the Company

incorporation/ share capital P NGIDESS
Name of subsidiary registration BEERT BRITRE Principal activities
MEBARERE B3/ ok it B HftRE EMEFBERBESL TEEK
2009 2008
ZBEAE —ZTEN\HE

Chung Tai Printing (China) Hong Kong ~ HK$1,000 ordinary 100 100 Label and offset
Company Limited BB HK$10,000 printing
RAENR () BRAR deferred non-voting 124 KA = ED
1,0008 7T & K
10,000 70
BREEERLTR
Chung Tai Printing Company Hong Kong ~ HK$1,000 ordinary 100 100 Investment holding
Limited 0 HK$500,000 REZR
R RENRIBRA A deferred non-voting
1,000 70 & ik
500,000/ 7T
BERERELTR
Delight Source Limited Hong Kong HK$200,000 100 100 Trading of
SHRBRAR N ordinary advertising
200,000/8 7T materials
BB BEEERSYH
Profit Link Investment Limited Hong Kong HK$100 ordinary 100 100  Property investment
RARREEEARAA N HK$2 deferred MEHRE
non-voting
1008 T E @R
2B
ERFEETR
The Greatime Offset Printing Hong Kong ~ HK$1,000 ordinary 100 100 Inactive
Company, Limited 5 HK$1,000,000 ERE
TR ENRIBRA A deferred non-voting
1,00078 7T & A
1,000,000/ 7T
BERERRELTK
The Greatime Printing (Shenzhen) The PRC HK$12,000,000 100 100 Label and offset
Co., Ltd. Y registered capital printing
HERENR CRIN) BRAF] 12,000,000 7T SHE LA

Chung Tai Printing Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2009
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Name of subsidiary

B —FEENF=H="+—HIFFE

Place of
incorporation/
registration

31. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

Paid up
issued/
registered
share capital
HRERT

Effective
percentage of
issued share
capital/registered
capital held
by the Company
NG g
BERITRE

31. B AR 2718 (&)

Principal activities

MEARER B/ o it B AflRE EMEAEREIL EEXH
2009 2008
—RBAE —TI\E
RRENR (&) ARAF The PRC HK$44,100,000 100 100 Inactive
H registered capital TS
44,100,000/ 7T
A E A
AR OB&) ARAR The PRC HK$10,000,000 100 100  Inactive
a2 registered capital EmEK
10,000,000 7T
General Star Industrial Limited Hong Kong HK$1 ordinary 100 - Investment holding
BEERERAA BB BT EREK REER
Citicorp Development Limited Hong Kong HK$1 ordinary 100 - Investment holding
BaBERARAF BE 1TETEBR REZRK
Chung Tai Investment & Hong Kong HK$1 ordinary 100 - Inactive
Development Co. Limited B BT E B mER
(previously known as “Gift
Source Limited"”)
PAREZRARAR
(BI7& : Gift Source Limited)
Gain Capital International Limited BVI Us$1 100 - Investment holding
RBRRES 17T REER
Brilliant Wise International Limited BVI Us$1 100 - Investment holding
KBRS 17T RERRK

Note: The Greatime Printing (Shenzhen) Co., Ltd., FAENR (F&E) ARAF Kiax - BERENR ORI BRAR ~ R KRENR (8
and FEAENRI (V&) B A Alare wholly foreign owned enterprises in the R) BRABRBEARER (O5&) ERAF]
PRC. THRBEZINEBERE -

PAEBREARAE -
—ETAETR
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31.

32.

PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

All operations are carried out in Hong Kong and the PRC.

With the exception of Chung Tai Printing (B.V.I.) Limited which
is directly owned by the Company, all other subsidiaries are
indirectly owned by the Company.

The deferred non-voting shares, which are not held by the
Group, practically carry no rights to dividends nor to receive
notice of nor to attend or vote at any general meeting of the
relevant companies or to participate in any distribution on
winding up.

None of the subsidiaries had any debt securities outstanding at
the end of the year or at any time during the year.

POST BALANCE SHEET EVENTS

(1) On 16 June, 2009, Gain Capital International Limited (”Gain
Capital”), a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, and
Neway Enterprise Holdings Limited (“Neway”) entered
into the sales and purchase agreement pursuant to
which Neway has agreed to sell and Gain Capital has
agreed to purchase Neway Entertainment Limited and its
group companies (including Star Entertainment (Universe)
Limited, Neway Star Limited, Sansible Corporation Limited,
Neway Star Artiste Management Limited, Neway Star
Music Limited, Neway Star Pictures Limited and Star
Entertainment Limited) at an aggregate consideration
of HK$65,000,000, such transaction will constitute a
business combination. The directors of the Company are
in the process of considering and quantifying the potential
financial impact of the above mentioned transaction.

Neway is indirectly wholly-owned by a discretionary trust
for the benefits of Dr. Suek Chai Kit, Christopher, a
director and a substantial shareholder of the Company,
and his family members.

Chung Tai Printing Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2009

31.ME A A 2515 (&)

PIA BN B S K BT -

BrChung Tai Printing (B.V.l.)
LimitedBA AR BIEEEBIN - BT
EEMHBARYERAR A EER
ﬁo

BEREEELER CEAKERKA)
ZRHEABEE LERERERE N
BERAREBEXLFEABLARZE
AIlRRAEHNE LIRE - HRE
BRI 2 EEMF DK -

B 88 X B 1A F 4% B A AR By FET B
BAERRARERZEBES

32.EHBRER

(1) RZZFEZENFRA+RE K
ANAEl2EN B AAFGain Capital
International Limited ([ Gain
Capital]) EENeway Enterprise
Holdings Limited ([Neway )
I —mEEWHH Bit-
Neway[R & H & M Gain Capital
[ & B E Neway Entertainment
Limited&e H & B 2 7] (B &
Star Entertainment (Universe)
Limited - Neway Star
Limited * Sansible Corporation
Limited * Neway Star Artiste
Management Limited * Neway
Star Music Limited * Neway
Star Pictures Limited & Star
Entertainment Limited) » 484K
{8 /365,000,000 7T * %R 5
BB —EEBE O - AAQF]
EFFEMREERELLARS
LEEMGERE -

Neway /S —EE R A A GFE
ERFERREBAFELRE
KGR B 2 Mmmp Lz 2k
EHETEHEAR -



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

by E S R

For the year ended 31 March, 2009
BE-SEAF=A=1—AILFE

32. POST BALANCE SHEET EVENTS (Continued) 32 ZEBRSBHE (&)

(2) On 17 July, 2009, a special resolution by the shareholders 2) R=ZZEFEALF+A++H-
of the Company at the special general meeting has been AAralRERBRREFINRE
passed to change the English name of the Company from FBRBFNAZBER  BAR
“Chung Tai Printing Holdings Limited” to “Neway Group Al I X % M A [Chung Tai
Holdings Limited”. It is subject to the approval by the Printing Holdings Limited| &
Registrar of Companies in Bermuda. M % [Neway Group Holdings

Limited| e E R BFBRER
AIEMERE R AER - HAl1E

=
5 °

K EIRI KA R
—ETAETR
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Financial Summary

M HLE

RESULTS E 3]
For the year ended 31 March,
BE=-ZA=+—HLFE
2005 2006 2007 2008 2009

“2PRF —TEAF —FILF “TIN\F —BEAF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$°000
Tsx TR TET TER TExR

Revenue W25 572,624 662,544 678,029 728,563 691,495
Profit (loss) before B A Al

taxation (&518) 61,723 63,969 40,761 41,184 (16,016)
Taxation I8 (7,386) (6,512) (6,268) (2,164) (1,920)
Profit (loss) for the year ZANFEEZ %A (EE) 54,337 57,457 34,493 39,020 (17,936)
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES EEHEE

At 31 March,
R=A=+-—H
2005 2006 2007 2008 2009

—EERF ZEERF —ZTETLF —TT)N\F ZEBEERE

HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
TATT TR T TATT T

Total assets BEMALE 613,187 646,424 658,326 1,015,703 817,001
Total liabilities BEEE 92,518 92,383 86,988 236,577 62,511
Total equity M AB R 520,669 554,041 571,338 779,126 754,490

Chung Tai Printing Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2009
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